Prime Orion Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consaolidated Financial Statements

as atJune 30, 2015 and 2014

and Years Ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013
and

Independent Auditors’ Report



SyCip Sneee velayo & Goo Ted {632) RS OE07 BOAPRC Feg BNo. 0001
SGV STED Ayaln Avpnia Fax [ADZ) 319 mFE Decomber 28, 2012, valid undil Debambes 31, 2805
1736 Makat iy ey comph GET Ascroditalion Me DIAE-FR-D §Snap &),
Bullcing & beties Plalsanns Pgypmbar 15, 2012, walid wrrtl Movemibar 16, 2015
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Orion Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
20¢F LG Tower

6801 Avala Avenue, Makati City

We have audited the necompanying consolidated financial statements of Prime Orion Philippines, Inc.
and its subsidiaries, which comprise the conselidated stasements of financial posiion a3 al

June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the censolidated statements of income, statements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in cquity and statements of cash flows for the three years ended

June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
informatéon.

Management’s Responsibility for the Conselidared Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal contral
a5 management determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.,

Auditors' Responsibility

Ohuer responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these consofidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Thase
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to cbtain
reasonahle assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboast the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the sssessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial stutements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial siatements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate m the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entiny"s intemal control.  An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, 4s well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
cur audit opinion,
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairty, in all material respects, the
firancial position of Prime Crion Philippines, Inc. and its subsidiarics as at June 30, 2015 and 2014,
and their financial performance and their cash flows for the three years then ended June 30, 2013,
2014 and 2013, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards,
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Partner
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FRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

{(Amounts in Thousands, Except Par Value and Number of Shares)

Jume 3

s 2014
ASSETS
Currenl Assels
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) F151,763 B371,534
Receivables (Mote 5) 496,116 603,141
Inventories {Mote ) 12,006 18,474
Feal estate held for sale and development (Mote 7) 430,003 429, 507
Amounts owed by related parties (Note 18) 9 22
Available-Tor-sale (AFS) financial assets (Nate §) 1,507 408 1.643 B0F
Financial assets af fair vakee through profit or loss (FVPL) (Note 9) 27,992 -
E]I:hnr current assets (MNote 10) 244,729 232115
Total Current Assets 2,870,126 3,208,691
Noncurrent Assels
Investments in an associate (Mote 11) 2.571 2564
Investment properties (Mote 12) 1,329,022 737488
Property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 46,328 672,083
Software costs (Note 14) 8800 §.957
Chther noncurrent assets {Note 15) 204,226 106207
Total Noncurrent Assets 1. 590,947 [,527.200
TOTAL ASSETS P4,461,073 ps E25.990
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabalities
Accounts pavable and accrued expenses (Note 16) P66T,262 BG6T3, TS5
Current portion of rental and other deposits (Note 17) 148,230 166,655
Total Current Liabilities B15.492 840,010
Moncurrent Liabilities
Remtal and other deposits - net of current portion (Note 17) 55331 48,088
Retirement benefits hability (Note 23} P6,975 LIRS
Deferred rent income (Mote 27) T2 735
Deferred income tax liabilities - net (Note 24) 234,565 241,561
Subscriptions pavable (Note 19) 481,675 481,675
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 899,338 871,244
Total Liabilities P1.714.830 1,711,654




June 30

015 2014
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parend
Capital stock - #1 par valee
Authorized - 2, 400,000,000 shares
Issued and subscribed - 2,367, 149,383 shares {net of
subscriptions receivable of #297.237 and #300,792 as at
June 30, 2015 and 2014) F2,069.912 P2,066357
Additional paid-in capital 529904 529 904
Treasury shares (21,916) -
Fevaluation increment on property, plant and equipment (Mote 13) 244,622 252,233
Unrealized valuation gains {losses) on AFS financial assets (Mote §) 2,066 B3.801
Loss on remeasurement of retirement benefits lability (Mote 23) (T2,481) (66, 736)
Deficit (378.204) (123.362)
1,673,903 1042197
Non-Controlling Interests 72340 72,139
Total Equity 2,740,243 1,114,336
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY #4,461,073 B4 825 990

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Salemeris



PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Earnings Per Share)

Years Ended June 30
2015 2014 2013
REVENLE
Rental and other charges (Mot 12) F414,475 B2 520 P419,769
Insurance premiums and commissions - net 136452 232,126 204, 880
Interest income on AFS firancial assets (Mote 8) 11,753 7R3 21,97
Merchandize sales 5611 22,070 255,390
Sarvice fees 3,070 6,972 3,446
Gain on sabe of AFS financial azsets (Mote §) 5840 159,159 147,303
Dividend income (Motes & and &) 4,218 4,032 1319
B9L438 £24.712 1,059 095
COESTS AND EXPEMSES
Cost of poeds sold and services (Note 210 26,3040 247 802 163,630
Operating expenses (Mote M) 35T 414 3B6.673 405,530
Commissicn and ather underwriting expenses 173,152 186,534 [B5914
TE56,275 & 1a 009 1055 404
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Impairment losses on AFS financial assets (Mate &) {241,187 (2,600) {291,500
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (Mote 13) 15344 196 1.206
Reversal of impairment losses on receivables 009 - -
Interest expense and bank charges - net (Note 22) 1,825 (1,366 (1,843)
Reversal of inventary losges ( Motz 6) 1,241 4360 -
Unrealized gain on financial asses @ FYPL (Mote 9) IR0 —
Rehabilitation expenses {Mobe 1) (609 (13,495) [ 0y
Equity in net incoame {less ) of associates (Mote 1) T (24) iz
Recovery from insurance {Mode 1) = 269,282 T&08h
Loss on write off on investment properies {Mote 123 - {2HE) e
Reversal of probable losses (Mote 16) = 243 146
Giain on re-measurement to AFS financial assets (Mote 1) = - sod 107
Caain on condenation of debt (Mote 1) - - 199 182
Casualiy loss (Motes 12 and 13) = - {63.247)
Reversal of impairment losses on amounts owed by related
partics (Mede 18] = G462
Crhers - nel 25,998 23,585 11,554
{186,122) 250 423202
INCOME (LO%S) BEFORE INCOME TAX (250,671) 287851 26,803
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX - Net (Mote 24) 11,564 £1,950 5,590
NET INCOME (LOSS) (#162,236) 205,903 P721,.213
ATTRIBUTABLE Tk
Equity hokders of the Parent (#262.453) B210,618 BI28,630
Nm-mtm]!l_nu amberesis 217 {4.715) (ALY
(P162.236) P203,903 P721,213
EARNINGS (LO55) FER SHARE Mote 25)
Basic and diluted, for income for the year aftributabls to
ordhinary equity holders of the Parer (P11} B0 P31

See avcomparning Notes to Coneolidaied Finemoial Stasements



PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013

NET INCOME (LOSS)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Chther comprehensive incone fo be reclassiffed (o
prrafie or loss in subsequent periods,
Unrealized valuation gains on AFS financial
assels (Mote B)

Chther comprehensive income (Toss) not to be
reclassified o profit or loss in subsequent
Jerimds:

Loss on remeasurement on retirement
benefits linbility net of tax (Note 23)
Effect of shortened corporate life of a
subsidiary {Note 1)
Hevaluation increment on property, plant and
equipment, net of tax (Note 13)

(B262.236) R205,903 PT21.213

251 245,666 62,571
{5,745) (8,592) {23,619)
- 2,026
- - (358)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(F267,730) P445.003 R7I9, 767

ATTRIBUTARBRLE TO:
Equity holders of the Paret
Mon-controlling interests

(P275,665) 454,024 P760,937
7,935 (6,021) (1.170)

(#267.730) P448,003 B759. 767

S arcomyremang Noves Lo Consolidated Financid Siarements
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PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended June 30

2015 2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Incaine {loss) before income tax (BI50.6TY) BIRT 851 BT R0
Adjusiments for:
Depreciation and amortization (Medes 12, 13,
14 and 27) 79,747 21675 £5.107
Provision (Recovery of} for impairment losses on;
AFS financial aszets (Mote &) 241,187 2600 291,501
[nventorics (TMote &) - 588 T0,952
Receivables (Note 5) (5,538) {553 0,536
Cher current assets (Mote [40) 76 il 193
Amounis owed by related parties (Note 18) 15 - (62,462)
Retirement benefits cxpense (Note 23) 22,773 25339 21,344
Interest income {16,599 (13,6233 (25,0%55)
Gain on sale of;
Property, plant and equipment (Mote 13} (15345) (192G} (1,206)
AFS financial assets (Note 8) (8.844) {159,189) (147,303}
Dividend income (Mole §) (4,228) {4,032 (1,31%)
Rewersal for inventory lodses (Motla &) (1,241) 4,360) =
Interest expense and bank charpes {Nate 22) £23 1.560 412
Gain on valuation of fair value of FVPL (1303 -
Equity in net loss {mcome) of associates (MNote 1 1) in 24 (32}
Recovery from msurance (Noge 1) = (269 287) [ TH.OEG)
Loss on write-of investment property (Mote 12) - 258 -
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) - net 4 05
Reversal of probable losses (Note 16) - - (243.3468)
Cain on re-measurement to AFS financial assets
{Mote 8) - (S04, 107}
Crain on condonation of debt (Mote 1) - = {199 202}
Casualty loss (Motes 12 and 13} - - 63,247
Ciperating income (loss) before working capital changes 41,718 {50,234) {74,637}
Deecrease {incrapss) in;
Beceivahles 1106 519,143 {305,431
Inwentories 7.708 14,744 o AT
Real catate held for sale and development (596) (149.328) (1,059)
Amounts owed by related parties (2) - -
Cither current asiels {12,690) (32,475) (8.198)
Increase {decrease) in:
Accounts payable and acerued expenzes 16,510) {381,846} 36l 5d6
Bental and other deposits 15,815 15,584 (7.162)
Met cash flows generated from (used m) operations 159,410 {44,412) 60 829
Interest received 18,19 14 466 28053
Incorme tax paid {19,712} {11,589) {(T.057)
Inlerest paid (523) {1,569) {812)
Met cash fows from (used in) operating activities FI5T 37 (P43, 10 PEL OIS

{Forward)



Years Ended June 50

1015 24 2013

CASH FLOWS FEOM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Contributions paid (F30,728) {P55,881) {P21,657)
Proceeds from sale of

AFS financinl assets (Mote &) 94,503 222845 293,437

Properiy, plant and equipmeni 15,345 230 2084
Acquisitions of;

AFS financial assers (Mole §) (271,177 (183,204) (178.101]

Invesiment propertics {Mote 12) (34,197) (15477) [58.485)

FYPL investments (27.712) =

Property, plant and equipment {Mote 13} (7T.367T) [100,460) (16918)

Software cost (Note 14) (3,805) (4,183 {3.005)
Decrease (ncrease) in:

Other noncurrent assels LR LN 8,363 1,15

Amounts owed by related parties -~ 3 (194}

HTM mvestments - 2,00

Dreferred rent income 74 423 684
Dividends received (MNote §) 4,118 4052 1,319
Met cash flows from (used in) investing activities {358,765) (43 1.409) 20,261
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of treasury shares (Z0,916) -
Collection of subscription receivables 3,558 S B
Pecrease i minority interest (1) 2,843 =
Decrease in amounts owed to related parties (Note | 8) — {2,677) =
Met cush flows from (used in) financing activities {18,377) 170
MET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (219,771 (274,343 276
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 37154 5877 L6
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR (Mote 4) BI51,763 B371.534 Peds 877

See accompandng Notes to Corsolidated Firamciol Statements



PRIME ORION PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|. Corporate Information and States of Operations

Corporate Information
Prime Orion Philippines, Inc. {(POPI; the Parent Company) was incorporated and registered with

the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on May 19, 1989, The Parent
Company’s primary purpose then was (o acquire by purchase, exchange, assign, danate or
otherwise, and to hold, own and use, for investment or otherwise and to sell, assign, transfer,
exchange, lease, develop, mortgage, pledge, traffic, deal in and with, and otherwise operate, enjoy
and dispose of any and all properties of every kind and description and wherever situated, as and to
the extent permitted by law, including but not limited 1o, buildings, tenements, warehouses,
factories, edifices and structures and other improvements, and bonds, debentures, promissory notes,
shares of capital stock, or other securities and obligations, created, negotiated or issued by any
corporaticn, association, or other entity, domestic or foreign. The Parent Company's registered
office address is 20/F LKG Tower, 6801 Avala Ave., Makati City.

Prime Orion Philippines, Inc. and its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as “the Group™, have
principal business interests in holding companies, real estate and property development, financial
services and manufacturing and distribution (see Note 26).

Status of Operations

On December 23, 2011, Lepanto Ceraimics, Ine. {LCI; a subsidiary) filed a Petition for
Rehabilitation (PR) with the Regional Trial Court of Calamba [RTC-Calamba) under Republic Act
(RA) No. 10142, etherwise known as the Financial Rehabilitation and Insolvency Act of 2010, 1o
aest LCEs continuing financial losses for the past several years and 1o enable it to eventually meet
its financial obligations to its creditors, On January 13, 20012, RTC-Calamba, Branch 34 (the
Court) issued a Commencement Order which staved enforcement of all claims against LCI
accruing price to Janvary 13, 2012, On March 26, 2012, the Count issued an Order, giving due
course to the PR, appointing a Rehabilitation Receiver (RR )} and directing him to submit an
amended Rehabilitation Plan (RP) based on comments submitted by creditors.

However, the Revised and Restated RP, the Second Amended and Restated BP, and the Third
Amended and Restated RP, all of which were crafied by the RR, were respectively voted upon and
rejected by the creditors, On November 28, 2012, the RR submitted to the Court the Third
Amended and Restated RP with the Recommendation 1o Confinm the Third Amended and Restated
RP Pursuaint to Section 63, of BA Mo, 10142,

On December 20, 2012, the Court issued an Order approving the Third Amended and Restated RP
{“Approved RP™) and ordering LCI to submit a Status Report on the implementation thereof every
90 doys. On January 11, 2013, the RR issued & Notice to Creditors that the pay-out of claims
would commence on January 21, 2013,

The following are the conditions provided in the Third Amended and Restated RP approved by the
Cougt:

a. Class | {Workers) shall be paid the full amount of their allowed claims within one i1} vear
from approval of the Third Amended and Resiated RP:

b. Class 1 {Local Government of Calamba) shall be paid the full amount of its allowed claim
within one (1) year from appeoval of the Third Amended and Restated RP:



Class 3 (Trade) Creditors will condone 85% of their allowed claims;

Class 4 (Mon-Trade Unsecured) Creditors will advance to LCI such amount necessary to pay
15% of the allowed claim of each Class 3 {Trade) Creditor;

The post commencement advances of Class 4 (Mon-Trade Unsecured) Creditors will be
converted to voting common shares;

The pre-commencement allowed claims of Class 4 (Non-Trade Unsecured) Creditors will be
condoned;

Class 5 (Secured) Creditors will condone its claims in excess of the market value of the
Company’s assets which serve as a securily for LCI's lizbility to the Secured Creditor. Al
servicing of the remaining claims of Class 5 (Secured) Creditor will be made after the
Class 3 (Trade) Creditors are settled: and

The common shares held by the Class 5 (Secured Creditor) in LC1 will be converted to
preferred shares,

As a result of the approval by the Court of the Third Amended and Restated RP, LCI recognized a
gain on condonation of debt from trade ereditors and related parties amounting to nil and
B1,499.78 millicn i 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 16). In 2013, the Group also recognize
a gain on condonation of debt from trade creditors amounting to #19%.3 million.

On August 12, 2013, LCI filed a Motion to Amend Rehabilitation Plan seeking the following
amendments to the Third Amended and Restated RP:

i,

Inclusion of the Deposit for Future Subscription of Orion | Holdings Philippines, Inc. (QTHPI)
in the amount of F373.62 million among the ¢laims 1o be condoned; and

Condonation of the claims of OTHPI 1o the extent of 60% of the market value of LCI's assets
securing the Mortgage Trust Indenture (MTI) and Collateral Trust Indenture, or in the amount
of #677.50 million and an adjustment on the excess market value of the collateral amounting 1o
#451.66 million to attain solvency.

Both RR and the affected creditor, OTHPI, filed their comment to the Motion to Amend,
signifying their assent thereto, On March 3, 2014, the Count issued an Order granting the
M otion o Amend.

Om May 29, 2014, LCI filed a Motion for Termination of Rehabilitation Proceedings, stating that
LTI has substantially sccomplished the asks and conditions provided in the Third Amended and
Restated RP, as follows:

Payment to claimants - LCI has already paid 50% of its obligation to Class 1 crediors
amounting to PO.72 million. Class 2 ereditor has already been paid in full. Meanwhile, Class 3
creditors have been paid #34.23 million or 6% of their claim. The unclaimed payments were
deposited to Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (MBTC) as “Unclaimed Claims Reserve
Fund™ {the Fund}. A creditor or worker may obtain payment from the account upon
presentation of sullicient proof of authority or identity within two (2) years from the opening of
the scooumnt.



. P

b. Conversion of shares - LCI's Board of Directors (BOD) authorized the conversion of shares of
stocks in accordance with the conditions in the Third Amended Plan. Om April 30, 201 3, the
SEC approved the amendment of its Articles of Incorporation to reflect the said conversion.

¢, Condonation of debt - In a special meeting held on March 27, 2014, the BOD of OITHPI
approved a resolution condoning the entire unsecured claim and a portion of its secured claim
eqquivalent fo 6044 of the market value of LOIs collateral aszets. Included in the debts
condoned are loans listed in the books of LC1 as Deposit for Future Subscription under
“amounts owed to related parties”™ amounting to B373.62 million.

The rehabilitation expenses incurred by LCI amounted to B0.61 million and P13.49 million in 2015
and 2014, respectively.

As at June 34, 2015 and 2014, LCI has settled a portion of its Hability to its creditors under the
approved rehabilitation plan amounting to 80,14 million and B1.52 million, respectively.

With the tatal lifting of the import safeguards for ceramic tiles beginning 2010, LCI suspended its
manufacturing operations in 2012 and started renting out its warehouses in July 2014, The
amended articles of incorporation of LOI states that LCI may purchase, acquire, own, lease, sell
and convey real properties such as lands, buildings, factories and warehouses and machineries,
equipment and other personal properties as may be necessary or incidental to the conduct of the
corporate business, and to pay in cash, shares of #s capital stock, debentures and other evidences of
indebtedness, or other securities, as may be deemed expedient, for any business or property
acquired by the corporation as one of its secondary purposes,

O September 4, 2012, certain property and equipment and investment properties of

Tutuban Properties, Inc. (TP1; a subsidiary) were damaged by fire, Fixed assets which were
completely destroyed were written off, while those partially damaged assets were provided with an
allowance for impairment. These property losses, with a net book value of P&3.25 million are
recorded as “Casualty loss” in the 2013 consolidated statement of income.

FLT Prime Insurance Corporation (FPIC), the insurance policy provider and a related party,
recognized the incident as a fire loss event. The insurance policy was substantially ceded by FPIC
to third party reinsurers. In line with this, TPI recognized recovery from insurance amounting to nil
and F269.28 million in the consolidated statement of income in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

TFI received insurance procesds from FPIC amounting to #134.43 million and
P174.71 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively

In January 20135, TP1 opened Orion Café adjacent 1o Orion Hotel, which is also located at the third
level of the Tutuban Primeblock Building. The café offers a comfortable area where guests can
relax and enjoy gourmet coffee, refreshing drinks and delicious meals and snacks,

Omn April 1, 2005, TPI signed 8 Memorandum of Understanding with the Deparunent of
Transportation and Communication (DOTC) and Philippine Mational Railways (PNR) in
connection with the finalization and implementation of plans to North-South Railway Project
(NSRP}of DOTC. The NSRP involves construction of the North Line (Bulacan to Tutuban) and
South Line (Tutuban to Afbay) with the transfer station located at Tutuban Center,

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at June 30, 2015 and 2014 and for years

ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were approved and authorized for issuance by the BOD on
October 9, 2015,
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2. Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance, Basis of Consolidation and Summary of
Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Busis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared oa a histocical cost basis, except for
available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, kand, land improvements, building and building
improvements (included under “Property, plant and equipment™) and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL) that are carried at fair values. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Philippine peso. which is the Group’s functional and presentation currmey under
Philippines Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). All values are rounded off to the nearest
thousand (#1,000) except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated finzncial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with PFRS.

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated linancial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries as at June 30, 2015 and 2014;

Effective Percentage

Subsidinries Mature of Buziness iof Ownership
20158 2014
Real Estate, Property Development
and Oihers:
Orion Land, Ine, (OLI) and Subsidiaries:
oLl Real Estate and Investmeni
Holding Company 100.00%  100.00%
TPI and Subsidiaries:
TH Real Estate, Mall Operations  100.00%  100.00%
TPI Heldings Corporation
(TPIHC) Investment Holding Company — 100.00%  100.00%
Orion Property Development, Inc,
(OPDI} and Subsidiaries:
QFDI Real Estate Development 100.00%  100.00%
Orion Beverage, Inc. (OBI) * Manufacturing 100.00%  [00.00%

Luck Hock Venture Holdings, Inc. (Mher Business Activities GOUMISGE  G0.00%

Manufacturing and Distribution:

OIHPI and Subsidiaries:
OIHPI Financial Holding Company  100,00%  100.00%
LCI Manufacture of Ceramic Floor
and Wall Tiles Dl 100,000
{Forweara)



Effective Percontage
Subsidiarics Mature of Business of Ownership
Financial Services and Others:
OF Holdings, Ine. (OEHI) and
Subsidiaries:
OEHI Wholesale and Trading TS 100005
Orion Maxis Inc. (CMI) Marketing and Administrative
Services 100.00%  100.00%
ZHI Holdings, Inc. (ZHI) Financial Holding Company  100.00%  100.00%
FPIC Mon-Life Insurance Company  100.00%  100.00%
Crion Solutions, Inc. (O5[) Management Information
Technology Consultancy
Services 100.00%  100.00%
* Imactive

All of the companics are incorporated and based in the Fhilippines.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which controf is transferred to the Group and cease
to be consolidated from the date on which control & transferred out of the Group.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same accounting period as the
Farent Company using uniform accounting policies.  All significant intercompany transactions and
balances between and among the Group, including intercompany profits and unrealized profits,
have been eliminated in the consolidation,

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of peofit or loss and net assets in the subsidiaries
not held by the Group and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income,
consolidated statement of comprehenzive income and within equity in the consolidated siatement
ol financml position, separately from the equity holders of the parent.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previows financial year except for
the following new and amended PFRS, Philippine Accounting Siandards (PAS), Philippine
Interpretations based on International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committes (IFRIC) and
improvements to PFRS which were adopted as at July 1. 2014

o PAS 12, Finemcial Instriments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets awd Financial
Liahilities { Amendments)
These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right o set-ofl™
and the eriteria for non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for
offsetting and are applied retrospectively, The Group is presenting its linancial assets and
financial liabilities at gross amounts in the consolidated statement of financial position.

= PAS 36, fimpairment of Assets - Recoverable Amont Disclosures for Nomfinoncial Asseis
{ Amendments)
These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRES 13, Fair Falue
Measwrement on the disclosures required under PAS 36, In addition, these amendments
require disclosure of the recoverable amoumts for the assels or cash-generating units (CGLUs)
for which impairment loss has been recognized or reversed durmgthe period. The application
of amendments has no effect on the Group's financial position or performance.
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»  PAS 39, Financial fnstruments: Recagnition and Measurement - Novation of Dervivaiives and
Confiereration of Hedre Accowniing (Amendments)
These amendments provide relief from discontinuimg hedge actounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria and retrospective
application is required. The Group expects that this amendment will have no effect in
consnlidated financial statements, as the Group has no derivatives during the current or prior
period.

¢ Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS 10, Comsolidated Finarcial Statements,
PFRS 12, Dirclosure of Intevests in (ther Entities, and PAS 27, Sepavare Financial
Nrcre i)
These amendments provide an exception to the consclidation requirement for entities that
meet the definition of an investment entity under PFRS 10. The exception to consolidation
requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at FVPL. It is not expecied that this
amendment would be relevant to the Group since the Group would not qualifv o be an
investment entity under PFRS 10.

# Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies (IFRIC 21)
IFRIC I clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for 8 levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is trigeerad upaon
reaching a mimimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be
anticipated hefoee the specified minimum threshold is reached. Retrospective application i
required for IFRIC 21. The Group does not expect that IFRIC 21 will have material financial
effect in future consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements fo PERS: (20002012 oycle)

In the 2010-2012 annual improvements cycle, seven (7) amendments to six (6) standards were
isswed, which included an amendment to FFRS 13, Fair Falne Meavurement. The emendment 1o
PFRS 13 is effective immedintely and it clarifies that short-term receivables and payables with no
stated imterest rates can be measured al invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is
immaterial. This amendment has no effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Armnual fmprovements o PFRSs (2071-2013 cycle)

In the 200 1-2013 annual improvements cycle, four (4) amendments to four (4) standards were
issued, which included an amendment to PFRS |, First-line Adoption af Philippine Financial
Reporiing Standards-Firsi-time Adoption of PFRS. The amendment o PFRS | is effective
immediately, Tt clarifies that an entity may choose 1o apply either a current standard or a new
stardard that is not yet mandatory, but permits early application, provided either standard is
applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the entity’s first PFRS fnancial
statemenis. This amendment has no effect on the Group as it is not a first-time PFRS adopter,

standards and [nterpretations Issued but mot vet Effective

The Group will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when these
become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Group docs not expect the adoption of these
new and amended standards and interpretations 1o have a significant effect on its consolidated
financial statements,




Effeciive Dale fo be Determined:

PFRS 9, Finarciol frastruments - Classificarion and Measurement {2010 version)

PFRS 9 (2011 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applics to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and habilities as defined in PAS 39,

FFRS 9 requires all Nnancial assets (o be measured at fir value at initial recognition, A debi
financial asses may, if the fair value option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at
amorized cost i i is held within a business model that has the objective to hold the asseis 1o
collect the contractual cash flows and &s contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, o
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstandmg. All
ather debt instruments are subsequently measured at FYTPL. All equiry financial assets are
measured at fair vatue cither through other comprehensive income (OCT) or profit or loss,
Equity financial assets held for trading must be measured at FVPL. For FVO liabilities, the
amount of change in the fair valoe of a lability that s attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented m OCL. The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or
loss, unless presentation of the fair value change relating to the entity’s own credit risk in OCI
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other PAS 39
classification and measurément requirements for financial liabilities have been carried forward
to PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative bifurcation rules and the criteria for using the
FVQ. The adoption of the first phaze of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Group's financial assets, but will potentially have no effect on the
classification and measurement of financial habilities.

PFRS 9 (2010 version) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after Janvary 1, 2015,
This mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 201 8 when the final version of
PFRS 9 was adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards Couneil (FRSC). Such adoption,
however, is still Tor approval by the Board of Accountancy (BOA)

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Consiruction of Real Extate

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and asscciated cxpenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real catate directly or through subcontractors. The SEC and the
FREC have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final revenue standard i
issued by the International Accounting Standards Boards (LASE) and an evaluation of the
requirements of the final revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate
industry is completed. Adoption of the interpretation when it becomes effective will nod have
any effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements,

The following new stamdards and amendments issued by the LASB were already adopied by the
FRSC but are still for approval of the BOA.

Effective Samuary I, 2005:

PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans; Emplovee Contributions (Amendments)
PAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they
should be attributed to periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify
that, if the amount of the coatributions is independent of the nurber of vears of service, an
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entity is permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of
service. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

Janvary 1, 20015, 115 nol expected that this amendment would be relevant to the Group, since
they have no defined benefit contribution plan with contributions from employees and third

parties.

Annual Improvements o PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cyele) are effective for annual persods begmning
on or after January 1, 2015 and are not expected to have a material effect to the Group. They

inc lude:

PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition
This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the
definitions of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

A performance condition must contam a service condition.
A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service.

= A performance target may relate o the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of
another entity in the same group.

s A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition,

=  [fthe counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the vesting
period, the service condition 15 not satisfied.

The amendment does not apply to the Group as it has no share-based payment.

PFRS 3, Buvinesy Combinations - Accornting jor Contingent Consideration in o Business
Cormhirarion

The amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition
date i5 on or after July 1, 2014, It clarifies that a contingent consideration that is not classified
as equity is subsequently measured at FVPL whether or not it falls within the scope of PAS 39
(or PFRS 9, Fimancial mstrumenss, if early adopted). The Group shall consider this
amendment for fulure business combinations,

PFRS 8, Uperaning Segments - dggregation of Operating Segmensy and Reconciliation of the
Tatal of the Reportable Segments ' Assers ro the Enriny s Assets
The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that:

*  An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in the standard, including a brief descniption of operating segmenis that have been
aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.p., sales and gross marpins) nsed (o assess
whether the segments are *similar”.

#  The reconcilistion of segment assets to total assets is only required 1o be disclozed if the
recanciliation is reported to the chiel operating decision maker, similar to the required
diszlosure for segment liabilities.



PAS 16, Property, Plamt and Equipment, and PAS 3B, iangiffe Assets - Revaduation Metfod
- Proporticnate Restatement of Accumulared Depreciation and Amoriizaion

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the asset
may be revalued by reference 1o the observable data on either the gross or the net cammyving
amount. In addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the difference between
the gross and carrying amounts of the assel.

PAS 24, Related Farty Dhsclosures - Key Management Personnel

The amendment 15 applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is an
entity that provides key management personnel services, is a related party subject to the
related pany disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to
disclose the expenses incurred for management services.

Annrial Improvements jo PFRSs (2011-2013 cyele)

The Annual Improvements to PERSs (2011-2013 cyele) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January [, 2015 and are not expected to have a material effect to the Group. They
inglude:

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scape Exceptions for Joint Arvange ments
The amendment iz applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope
exceptions within PFRES 3:

= Joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 3.
= This scope exception applies only 1o the accounting in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself,

PFRS 13, Fuir Vaiue Measuremen: - Porifolio Exception

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS |3
can be applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts
within the scope of PAS 39 or (PFRS 9, as applicable).

PAS 40, fnvestmem Property

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that PFRS 3, and not the description of
ancillary services in PAS 1), is used o determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset
or business combination. The description of ancillary services in PAS 40 only differentiates
between investment property and owner-cccupied property (i€, property, plant and

SO et )

Effective January 1, 2016:

PAS 16, Praperty, Plant camd Equipment, and PAS 38, Mrangible Asvere - Clarification of
Aceeprable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization { Amendments)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a resuli, o
revenue-hased mathod cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumslances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any effect 1o the Group
given that the Group has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current assets.
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PAS 16, Properny, Plant and Eguipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Planis
{Amendnrents)

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological asscts that meet the
definition of bearer plants, Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition
of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41, Insigad, PAS |6 will apply.
After initial recognition, bearer planis will be measured under PAS 16 at scoumo lated cost
{before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 4] measured at fair value less costs to sell For government grants related 1o bearer
plants, FAS 20, Accownting for Government Gremis and Disclosure of Government Asstitance,
will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or
afier lanuary 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected o
have any effect fo the Group as the Group does not have any bearer plants.

PAS 27, Separate Financiol Stavements - Equity Method in Seporate Financial Statements
[Amendments)

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, point ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. For firsi-time adopters of PFRS
electing to use the equity methad in its separate financial statements, they will be required to
apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective for
annual perinds beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments will not have any effect on the Group's consolidated Rnancial statements.

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statenents and PAS 18, Invesimenis in Associates and Joint
Vestures - Sale or Comtribution of Assees betwean an firvestor and fts Associare or Joinr
Femtura

These amendments address an scknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture, These amendments require that a full gain or
loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary
or nat). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments will
nit have any effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

PERS 11, Joini Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Chperations
[Amendments)

The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint cperator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in @ joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes & business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting, The
amendments also clarily that a previousty held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured
on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is
retaingd. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties shasing joinl control, including the reporting entity,
are under commaon control of the same ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply o
bath the acquisition of the initial interest in a joinl operation and the acquisition of any
additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective for annual
periods beginning on or after Jannary 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments are not expected to have any effect to the Group.
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FFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accowmnts

FFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-
regulation. 10 continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must
present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate ling items on the statement of financial
position and presént movements in these account balances as separate line items in the
statement of profi or loss and staternent of other comprehensive income, The standard
requires disclosures on the nature of, and nisks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and
the effects of that rate-regulation on its financial statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, Since the Group is an existing PFRS preparer,
this standard would not apply.

Avnnal Improvements fo PFRSs (2012-2014 cyvele)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 20016 and are not expected to have a material effect to the Group. They

i hude:

FFRS 3, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinwed Operations - Changes in
Methands of Disposal

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through
sale to a disposal throngh disteibution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be
a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies
that changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification.

PFRS 7, Financial Instrionents: Discloswres - Servicing Comtracts

PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in &
transferred assct that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing
confract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An
entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in
order 1o assess whether the disclosures are required.  The amendment is 1o be applied such that
the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement will need to be
done retrospectively, However, comparative disclosures are not required to be provided for
any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the
amendments,

PFRS T - Applicability of the Amendments fo PFRS 7 1o Condensed Frterim Finaneial
Slerlemenis

This amendment i applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial
report unless they provide a significant update to the infor mation reported in the most recent
annual report,

PAS 19, Emplovee Benefits - Regional Market fssue Regarding Discount Rare

This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rither than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high
quality corporate bonds in that currency. povernment bond rates must be used.
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FAS 34, Duterim Fivanclal Reporting - Discloswre of fnformaiion "Elsewhere in the Interim
Financial Repori’

The amendment is apphed retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures
must gither be in the interim fnancial siatements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or rigk report).

Effective January |, 2018;

FERS %, Fimancial fnstruments - Hedge Accownting and Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 32 (2013 version)

PFES 9 {2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project to replace PAS 3% which
pertains 1o hedge accounting.  This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rmles-based hedge
accounting model of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach. Changes include
replacing the rules-bazed hedge effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses on
the economic relationship between the hedged ftem and the hedging instrument, and the effect
of credit risk on that economic relatienship; allowing risk components to be designated as the
hedged item, not only for financial ftems but also for non-financial items, provided that the
risk component is separately identifiable and reliably mecasurable; and allowing the time value
af an option, the forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread
to he excluded from the designation of & derivative instrument as the hedging instrument and
accounted for as costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge
accounting.

FFRS 8 (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective date of
Jarmary 1, 2008 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the
FRSC, The adoption of the final version of PFRS 9, however, is still for approval by BOA.
The adoption of PFRS 2 iz nof expecied to have any significant eflfect on the Group”s
consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 8, Finaneial lnstriments (2004 or Final Yersion)

In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9 was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the
financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39 and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and
hkedge accounting, PFRS 9 15 effective for annual periods beginning on or after

Jamuary 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but
comparative information 15 not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9
is permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015,

The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
Group's financial assets and methodology for financial asscts, but will have no effect on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s flinancil liabilities. The adoption will also
have an effect on the Group's application of hedge accounting. The Group is curmently
azseszing the effect of adopting this stamsdard.



The tollowing new standard isseed by the IASE has not vet been adopted by the FRSC.

= [nternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 15, Revenwe from Contracts with
Custonme s
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and cstablishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue s recognized at an
amount that reflects the consideration o which an entity expects to be entiiled in exchange for
transferring goods or services o a customer, The principles in IFRS 135 provide a more
structured approach 1o measuring and recogmizing revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable o all endities and will supersede all current revenue recognition reguirements under
IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods
beginning on or after January |, 2018 with early adoption permitted. The Group is currently
assessing the effect of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective
date once adopted locally.

The revised, amended and additional disclosures or accounting changes provided by the standards
and interpretations will be included in the financial statements in the vear of adoption, if
applicable.

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Presentation of Financial Statements

The Group has elected to present two statements, a consolidated staterment of income and a
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, rather than a smgle consolidated statement of
comprehensive income containing the two elements,

Eiitancial | - Initial R -

Financial instruments within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as financial assets and Babilities at
FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial azsets, financial
liabilities or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition,

All linancial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the
case of financial instruments recorded at FYPL.

As at June 30, 20015 and 2014, the Group’s financial assets are in the nature of loans and
receivables, financial assets at FVPL and AFS financial assets. The Group has no financial assets
classified as HTM mvestments as at Jure 30, 2005 and 2014,

Purchases or sales of financial instruments that require delivery of assers within a time frame
established by regulation or convemtion in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on
the trade date (i.e., the date that the Group commits o purchase or sell the asset).

Fiancial liabilities within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as fmancial liabilities at FVPL, as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, or as other financial
liabilities. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition,

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of other financial
liabilities, phus directly attributable transaction costs,

A AT A
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As at June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Group®s financial liabilities are in the noture of other financial
liabilitics. As at June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Group has no financial liabilities classified as at
FVPL and derivatives designated as hedging instruments m an efTective hedge

‘i i5 - Su went Measurement
The subssquent measurement of financial instrumenis depends on their classification as follows:

Loemg and Receivadles

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsegquently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (E[R) method, less
impamrment. Amortized cost is caloulated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pant of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included
in interest income in the consolidated statement of income. Gains and losses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the loans and receivables are impaired or desecognized.
Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within twelve (12) months from
the end of the reporting period. (Otherwise, these are classified 43 noncurrent assels.

The Group™s loans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents, receivables, amounts owed
by related parties and refundable deposits (included under “Crther noncurrent assets™, see

Notes 4, 5, 15 and 18)

AFS Financial Assets

AFS financial assets include equity and debt securities. AFS financial assets consist of investment
in equity securities which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at FVPL. Debt
sacurities in this categary are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
that may be solbd in response to needs for Bguidity or in response fo changes in the market
conditions,

Financial assets may be designated at initinl recognition as AFS financial assets if they are
purchased and held mdefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes
in market conditions.

AFS fimancial assets are included in current asscis if it 15 expected to be realized or disposed of
within twelve (12) months from the end of the reporting period, Otherwise, these are classified as
nOncurmen assets,

After initial recognition, AFS fnancial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses recognized under CCI in the “Unrealized valuation gains { losses) on
AFS fmancial assets™ in the consolidated statement of changes in equity until the investment is
derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income, or the investment 5 determined (o be impaired, when the cumulative loss is
rechassified from equity to the consolidated statement of income as finance costs. Where the
Group holds more than one investment in the same securiry, these are deemed 1o be disposed of on
a first-in, first-out basis. Interest earned on holding AFS financial assets are reparted as interest
income using the EIR. Dividends earned on holding AFS financial assets are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the right of payment has been established. The kosses
arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.

The Group's Histed and nonlisted equity securities and quoted and unguoted debd securiies ane
classified under this category (see Note §).
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Financial Assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FYPL, Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they arc
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.  This category inchides
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
mstruments in hedge relationships as defined by PAS 39, Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets al FVPL are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the statement of income.

The Company evaluated its financial assets at FVPL (held for trading) whether the intent 1o sell
them in the near term 85 still appropriate. When the Coanpany 15 unable to trade these financial
assels due (o inactive markets and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Company may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. The reclassification to loans and receivables, AFS financial assets or HIM
mvestments depends on the nature of the asset. This evaluation does not affect any financial
assets designated at FVPL using the fair value option at designation,

The Company’s redeemable preference shares are classified under this category (see Note 9).

Other Financiol Lighilities

After initial recognition, interest-bearing other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
issue costs, and any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an infegral part
of the EIR. Gains and losses are recognized in the consclidated statement of income when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization process,

The Group's financial liahilities include aceounts payable and acerued expenses and rental and
other daposils (see Notes 16 and 17),

Fair Yalue of Financial |nstruments

The Group measures financial instruments, such as financial assets at FVPL, at fair value at each
end of the reporting period.  Also, fair values of financial instruments measured are disclosed in
Mode 30,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or Hability, or
= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most sdvantageous market must be accessible to by the Group, The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measurcd using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
inilerest,
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate n the circumstances and for which
sufficient dota are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

Ml assets and lisbilities for which fair value iz measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

#  Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or linbilities

#  Level I - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 15 significant to the fur
value measurement is unchservable

For assets and lizbilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occorred between Levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing calegorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at each end of the reporting period.

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded m orgamized financial markets i
determined by reference o quoted marked close prices at the close of business on the end of the

reporting period,

For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techmigues, Such technigues include comparison o similar investments for which market
observable prices exist and discounted cash low analysis or other valuation models,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined the classes of asscts and
lBabilitics on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or Hability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is anv ohjective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred afler the initial recognition of the asset {an
incurred “loss event™) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash Mows of the
financial asset or the growp of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that the deblors or a group of debtors 5 experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinguency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will emer bankruptcy or other financial receganization and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated fiture cash flows, such as
changes in arrcars or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

R A
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Financial Assers Carried ar Amortized Cogt

For financial assets carried at amontized cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets that arc individually significant, or
collectively for finencinl assets that are not individually significant. 1f the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed fnancial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset ina group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment 1oss is, or continues to be, recognized are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

IT there s objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not vet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash Mlows 15 discounted at the financial assets original EIR.
It 2 loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
curreni EIR.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance sccount and the
amount of the loss 15 recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Loans and receivables,
together with the associated allowance, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery. Interest income continues 1o be recoznized based in the original EIR. If, ina
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss i
reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the assel does not exceed its amortized cost at the
reversal date,

AFS Financial Assety Cavried at Fair Values

For AFS financial assets, the Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there
# objective evidence that an investment is impaired. Debt securities in this category are those that
are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and that may be sold in response o needs
for liguidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as AFS financial assets if they are
purchased and held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liguidity requirements or changes
in market conditions.

AFS financial assets are included in current assets il it is expected 10 be realized or disposed of
within twelve (121) months from the end of the reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as
nOnCUrrent assets.

After initial recognition, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured an fair value with
unrealized gains and losses recognized as other comprehensive income in the “Unrealized
valuation pains (losses) on AFS financial assets” in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity until the financial assel & derecognized, a1 which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognized in consolidated statemnent of income, of the invesiment is determined Lo be impaired,
when the cumulative loss is reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of income in
finance costs.
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Where the Group holds more than one investment in the same security, these are deemed to be
disposed of on a first-in, first-out basis. Interest earned on holding AFS financial assets are
reported as interest income using the EIR. Dividends camed on holding AFS financial assets arc
recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the night of payment has been
established. The losses arising from impairment of such financial assels are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued based on the rate of interest used to discount future cash Mows for the purpose of
measuring impairment loss. The interest income is recorded in the consolidated siatement of
ingome. IF, in subsequent vear, the fair value of 2 debt instrument increased and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment Joss was recognized in the
consolidated statement of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated
statement of income,

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that
is linked 1o and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has been
incurred, the amount of the loss s measured as the difference between the asset’s camying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted a1 the current market rare of remurm
fior a simitar financial asseL

Derecognition of Finaneial Instruments

Financial Assets
A Tinancial asset (or, where applicable a pant of a financial asset or par of a group of simikar
financial assets) is derccognized when:

»  the rights 10 receive cash flows from the asset have cxpired;

®  the Group has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation 1o pay the received cash flows in full without material delay 1o & third party under a
“pass-through™ arrangement; and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset; or {b) has neither transferved nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash Nows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained all the risks and

rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized 1o the extent of
the Group's cortinuing involvement in the asset, In that case, the Group also recognizes an
associated lability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. Coentinuing involvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrving
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be reguired 1o

rcpa}'-

Fimancial Liabilities

A financial kability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or has expired.
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Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantialby
different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification s treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts of a financial liability extinguished
or transferred 1o another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
rransferred or Habilities assumed & recegnized in the consolidated siatement of income,

OFaettinge of Fineneinl Instruments

Financial assets and firancial Habilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to sef off the
recoptiized amounts and the Group intends to either settle, on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
saitle the liabilities simultianeously. Ths s not generally the case with masier netting agreements,
and the related asscts and liabilitics are presented at gross amounts in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Costs incurred in
bringing each product to its present location are accounted for as follows:

»  Finished goods - direct materials, labor, and proportion of manufacturing overhead based on
normal operating capecity but excluding bomowing costs.

* Factory supplies and spare pants - purchase cost on a moving-average method;

The NRV of finished goods is the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
coats of completion and the estimated costs nocessary to make the sale. NRV of factory supplies
and spare parts is the current replacement cost. In determining NRY, the Group considers any
adjusiment necessary for obsoloscence,

Real Estate Held for Sale and Development

Real estate beld for sale and development is carried at the lower of cost and NRV. NRV s the
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the costs of completion, marketing and
distribution. Cost inclides acquisition cost of the land plus development and improvement costs.
Borrowing costs incurred on loans obtained to finance the improvements and developments of real
estate held for sale and development are capitalized while develapment is in progress.

i e

Other current assots consists creditable withholding taxes (C'WTs), input value added 1ax (VAT
and prepayments.

CHTx

CWTs represent taxes withheld by the Group’s customer on sale of goods and cervices which are
claimed against income tax due. The excess over tax payable is carried over in the succeeding
perind for the same purpose.

Tnprt VAT

Input VAT represents VAT imposed on the Group by its suppliers for the purchase of domestic
goads and/or services as required by Philippine taxation laws and regulations. Input VAT is
presented as current asset,

LU
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Properyencrs

Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded ag asset before they are utilized. Prepaid
cxpenses are apportioned 1o expense over the period covered by the payment and charged to the
appropriabe expense accounts when incurred.

Investment in an Associate
The Group's investmenl in an associale s accounted for using the equity method, An associale is
an entity in which the Group has significant influence.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate s camied in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post acguisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the
mssociate.

When there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate,

The Group's share of profit of an associate is shows on the face of the consolidated statement of
income, This is the profit attributable to equity holders of the associate and, therefore, is profit
after tax and non-contrelling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group,
When necessary, adjustments are made 1o bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Giroup,

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it i necessary to recognize
an additional impairment loss on its investments in associates, The Group determines at each
reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in an associate is
impaired. 1fthis is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associates and its camymg value and recognizes the amount
in the “Equity on net income of an associate™ in the consolidated statement of income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any
retaming investment at #s fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate
upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognized in profit or loss,

In the Parent Company’s separate financial statements, investment in an associate is accounted for
at cost less impairment losses,

Investment in an associate pertains to the 20% percentage of ownership in investment in BIB
Aurora Insurance Brokers, Inc. (BAIBI.

As discussed in Mote B, the SEC approved the debt to equity conversion of Cyber Bay resulting 1o
a change m percentage ownership of POPI from 22 28% to 10.46%. As a result of the change in
ownership interest and loss of sipnificant influence, the investment in Cyber Bay has been
classified as AFS financial asset starting November 13, 2012,



Investment Properties

The Group's investment properties include properties utilized in its mall operations, condominium
umnit, commercial building and certain land which are held for rentals while the rest of the land is
held for capital appreciation.

Investment properties utilized in its mall operations are stated at their revalued amount as deemed
cost as allowed under PFRS less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. Condominium unit and commercial building are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Land is stated at cost less any
impairment in value,

The initial cost of investment properties include the cost of replacing part of an existing
investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition critéria are met; and
excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property, Leaschold improvements
under investment properties (including buildings and siructures) on the leased land are cartied at
cost dess accumulated amortization and any impairment in value,

Investment properties are derecognized when they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carmying amount of the asset is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the period of derecopnition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. Fora
transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property. the deemed cost for subseguent
accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use  If owner-oceupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group sccounts for such property n accordance with the policy stated
under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Leasehold improvements and investment propertics are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter.

The lease contract on a land where investment property is located is for twenty five (25) years,
which is also the amortization period of the investment property. In December 2009, the lense
contract on a land where the Group’s primary investment property is located was renewed

{20 Mote 271 As a resoll of the lease renewal, and the review of the estimated oseful life and
amortization period of the said investment property, management came 1o a conclusion that there
haz been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the said property
of the Group, As a vesult, the Group prospectively revised the remaining amortization period off
this property from an average of twenty five (25) vears (which is the shorter of the fease term and
the estimated useful life) wo thirty five (35) years effective September 5, 2014, The change has
been accounted for as a change in accounting estimates.

FProperty, Plant and Equipment
Lo anel Tenprrovemenis avd Buildings and Improvemenis aif Revalued Amownt

Land and buildings topether with their improvements stated at appraised values were determined
by an independent firm of appraisers. The excess of appraised values over the acquisition costs of
the properties is shown under the “Revaluation increment in property, plant and equipment”
account in the consolidated statement of financial position and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. An amount corresponding to the difference between the depreciation based on
the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the original cost 15 transferred
annually from “*Revaluation increment on property, plant and equipment™ 1o *Deficit™ account in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Leasehold Improvemenis, Machinery and Equipment, Transpovtation Equipinent, Furniture,
Fixtures and Equipmment | Condominium Units and fmprovements, and Hovel Equipment o
Cost

Property, plant and equipment are caried at cost, less sccumulated depreciation, amontization and

any impawment in value. The initial cost of propenty, plant and equipment consists of its purchase

price, including import duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the property,
plant and equipment to its working condition and bocation for its ntended use. Expenditures
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged 1o operations in the year in which the costs
are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulled
in an increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property, plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditures arc capitalized a3 an additional cost of property, plant and equipment,

Depreciation and amortization are cakeulated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
of the property, plant and equipment as follows:

Ulseful life in vears

Land and improvements 30
Buildings and improvements 30
Machinery and equipment 5-10
Transportation equipment g
Fumniture, fixtures and equipment 3.5
Condominium units and improvements 25
Hotel equipment 5

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over three (3) to five (5) vears or
the term of the lease, whichever is shorter.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Amy gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset {calculated s the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is
derecognized,

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation and amortization methods are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

Fully depreciated assels are retained in the accounts until these are no longer in use, When assets
are sold or retired, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
impamrment in value are eliminated from the accounts end any gain or loss resuling from their
dispozal is included in the consclidated statement of income,

Softwarg Costs

Acquired software license is capitalized on the basis of costs incurred 1o acquire and bring 1o use
the specific software, Software license is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of three (3} 1o four (4) years. Costs associated with the development or maintenance of
computer software programs are recognized as expense when incurred in the consolidated
statement of income,

L
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An item of software license 15 derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected 1o arise from the continued use of the asset, Any gain or loss arising on
derecopnition of the asset is included in the consclidated statement of income in the year the items
is derecognized.

The Group's capilalized sofiware and development costs includes purchase price pavmenis for
nesw software and other directly refated costs necessary 1o bring the asset 1o use.

Ciher Moncorrent Assets

Oither noncurrent assets consist of advance rental, deferred acquisition cost, deferred reinsurance
premivms, refundable deposits, deferred input VAT, sparepans and supplies, unclaimed claims
reserve fund and other prepayments that will be consume after twelve (12) months of the reporting

period.

Leferved Acgquisition Costy

Commission and other acquisition costs mourred during the finencial reporting period that are
refated to securing new insurance contracts and/or renewing exisling insurance contracts, bul
which relates to subsequent lnancial periods, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable
out of futre revenoe margins. All other acquisition costs are recopnized as an expense when
incurred.

Subsequent o initial recognition, these costs are amortized using the twenty-forth {24™) method
except Tor marine cargo where the delerred acquisition costy pertain to the commissions for the
last two (2) months of the vear. Amaortization is charged to the consolidated statement of income.
The uramortized scquisition costs are shown as deferred acquisition cost under “other noncurrent
Assels”,

Tpai tof ™

Sverfories

The Group recognizes provizsion for inventory losses when the net realizable values of inventory
items become lower than the ¢osts due 1o obsolescence or other causes, Obsolescence 15 based on
the physical and internal condition of inventory items. Obsolescence is also established when
mventory items are no longer marketable, Obsolete goods, when identified, are written down to
their net realizable values.

Fnvestment i an Associate

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that the
investiments in an associate is impaired, [fthis is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as being the difference between the fair value of the mvestments and the acquisition
cast and recognizes the amount in the consolidated statement of income.

An assessment is made at each end of the reporting period as 1o whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recoenised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the investment's
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. 17 that is the case. the camying
amount of the investment & increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amaoum cannat
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit ar loss in the
consolidated staterment of income,



-4

Real Estate Held for Sale and Development, Investment Properties, Property, Plant ard
Equipment and Software Coses
The Group assesses al each end of the reporting period whether there B an indication that real
estate for sale and development, investment properties, property, plant and equipment and
software costs may be impaired, 1T any such indication exists and where the carrying values
exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or cash-generating units {CGU) are writlen
down to their estimated recoverable amounts, The estimated recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of fair valoe less cost to sell and value in use. The fair value less cost to sell is the amount
obtzinable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s-length transaction less the costs of disposal while
valee in use is the present value of estimated future cash Mows expected 1o arise from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash Nows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the Hme value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the estimated recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs, Impairment losses of continuing
operations are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in those expense categorics
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by a credit to current operations to the extent
that it does not restate the asset 10 a carrying amount in excess of what would have been
determined (net of any accumulated depreciation) had no impairment Inss been recognized for the
@s5el In Prior years,

Recovery of impairment losses recognized in pricr vears is recorded when there is an indication
that the impairment losses recognized Tor the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The
recovery i recorded in the consolidated statement of income. However, the increased carrying
amount of an assel due to a recovery of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent it does not
exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for that asset m prior years.

MNowfingreial Other Crrrent and Noncurrent Assets

The Group provides allowance for impairment losses on nonfinancial other current and noncurrent
a3sels when they can no longer be realized, The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any
period would differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized different estimates. An
mcrease i allowance for impairment losses would increase recorded expenses and decrease other
current and noncurrent assets.

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk at the inception of
the contract, or those where at the inception of the contract, there is a scenario with commercial
substance where the level of insurance risk may be significant over ime. The significance of
insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of an insured event and the magnitude of its
potential effect. As a general guideline, the Group defines significant msurance risk by comparing
benefits paid with benefits pavable if the insured event did not occur. Once a contract has been
classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its
lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and
obligations are extinguished or has expired. Investment contracts can however be reclassified as
mnsurance contracts after inception if the insurance risk becomes significant.



Recognition and Measurenment
a) Premium Revenue

Premiums from short-duration insurance contrects are recognized a5 revenoe over the period
of the contracts using the 24th method, except for premiums arising from marine cargo where
the provision for uncarned premiums pertains to the premiums for the last two months of the
vear. The portion of the premivms written that relates o the unexpired penods of the policies
at financial reporting dates is accounted for as “Reserve for unearmed premiums” and shown as
pant of “Accounts payable and accrued expenses™ in the Liabilities section of the consolidated
statement of Mnancial position.  The related reinsurance premiums ceded thar pertain 1o the
imexpired periods at financial reporting dates are accounted for as “Deferred reinsurance
premiums” and shown under “Other noncurrent assets™ m the Assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial positions. The net changes in these accounts between
financial reporting dates are charged to or credited against income for the period.

b} Insurance Contract Liabilities

)

Insurance contract liabilities are recognized when coniracts are entered into and premiums are

charged,

Praovigsion for Uncarned Premiums

The proportion of written premiums, gross of commissions payable o intermedianes,
attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as provision for unearmed premiums using the
24" method, except for the marine cargo’s last two months of the year. The change in the
provision for anearned preminms 15 taken to the consolidated statement of income in the order
that revenue is recopnized over the period of risk. Further provisions are made o cover claims
onder unexpired insurance contracts which mav exceed the unearned premmums and the
premiums due in respect of these confracts.

Claims Pravizion and fncurred bur nor Reported (TBNR) losges

Dutstanding claims provision are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred
but ned seftled at the financial reporting date, whether reporied or not, together with related
claims handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries.
Delays can be experienced in the notification and settbement of certain tvpes of claims,
therefore the ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty af the reporting date. The
liability is not discounted for the time value of money and includes IBMNR losses. Mo
provision for equalization or catnstrophic reserves s recognized, The liability 15 derecognized
when the contract expires, i3 discharged or i3 cancelled,

Liahility Adequacy Test

At each financial reporting date, liability adegquacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy
of insurance comract labilities. In performing the test, current best estimates of future cash
Mows, claims handling and policy administration expenses are used, Any inadeguacy is
immediately charged to the consolidated statement of income by establishing an unexpired
risk provision for losses arising from the labiliy adequacy tesiz,

Feinsurance Assels

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business, Reoinsurance assels
représent balances due from reinsurance companies for ceded irsurance labilities.
HRecoverable amounts are estimated in & manner consistent with the outstanding claims
provisions and are in accordance with the reinsurance contractl,



« 26 -

An impairment review is performed on all reinsurance assets when an indication of
impairment arises during the financial reporting period.  Impairment occurs when ohiective
evidence cxists that the Group may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the
contract and when the impact on the amounts that the Group will receive from the reinsurer
can be measwred reliably, The impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of
income.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group from its obligations to
policyholders.

The Group alse assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for insurance
contracts when applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized as
income and expense in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered
direct business, taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business.

Kental and (nher Deposits
Customer rental and other deposits represent payment from lenants on leased properties which are

refundable at the end of the lease contract

Subscriptions Pavable

Subscriptions payable pertams to the Group’s unpaid subscription of shares of stock of other
entitics. These are recognized and carried in the books a1 the original subscription price in
exchange of which, the shares of stock will be issued.

Capital Stock

Common shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity 1s a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. The excess of procesds from issuance of shares over the
par value of shares arc credited to " Additional paid-in capital”.

Other Comprehensive Ingome {Loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss) comprises items of income and expense (including items
previously presented under the consolidated statement of changes in equity) that are not
recognized in the consolidated statement of income Tor the yvear in accordance with PFRS.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, The Group assesses its revenue
arrangements against specific criteria to determine il it is acting as principal or agent. The Group
has concluded that it is acting as principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The specific
recognition criteria described below must alse be met before revenue is recognized:

Renr and ofher charges

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment propertics is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue due to its operating nature. Other
charges pertain to rebilled utility charges to tenants in relation to the operating lease on properties.
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Insurance Premiums and Commissions - net

Premiums from shor-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the
conitracts using the 24th method, except for premiums ansing from marine cargo where the
provision for uncarned premiums pertains to the premiums foe the last two months of the year,
The portson of the premivms written that relates to the umexpired periods of the policies at
financial reporting dates & accounted for 45 “Reserve for unearned premiums™ and shown as part
of “Insurance contract labilities™ in the Liabilitses section of the consolidated statement of
financial posithon. The related reinsurance premiums ceded that pertain o the unexpired periods
at financial reporting dates are accounted for as “Deferred reinsurance premiums™ and shown
umider “Reinsurance assets™ m the Assels section of the statement of censolidated financial
positions. The net changes in these accounts between financial reporting dates are charged to or
credited against income for the period,

Reinsurance commissions are recognized as revenue over the period of the contracts using the
24th method, except for marine cargo where the deferred reinsurance commission pertains (o the
premiums for the last two months of the yvear. The portion of the commissions that relates 1o the
unexpired periods of the policies at the financial reporting date is accounted for as “Deferred
reinsurance commissions” in the Liabildies section of the consolidated statement of fimancial
position.

Fam on Sale of AFS Financial Assets
Gann on sale of AFS financial assets s recognized when the Groop sold is AFS Tlinancial assets
higher than its fair market value at the time of sale.

Merehandise Safes and sale of assets
Revenue from sale of merchandise and assets are recopnized when the significan risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.

Interezr come

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets
clazsified as AFS financial assels, inlerest income or expense is recorded uzing the EIR, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial assct,

Gervice Fees
Service fees are recognized based on agreed rates upon completion of the service.

Drividhenel fncome
Drividend income is recognized when the Group’s right 10 receive the payment is established.

Cost and Expenses

iCosts and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity. Expenses are recognized in
the consolidated statement of income in the pericd these are incurred. Cost and expenses are
senerally recogmized when services or goods wsed or the expense arises in the appropriate
financial reporting period.
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Operating Expenies

Operating expenses consist of all expenses associated with the development and execcution of
marketing and promotional activities and expenses incurred in the direction and general
administration of day-to-day operations of the Group. These are generally recognized when the
service is incurred or the expense arises,

Coust of Goods Sald and Services
Cost of sales and services are incurred in the normal course of the business and are recognized
when incurred. These comprise cost of goods sold, services, merchandise and handling services.

Eamings P'er Share
Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year atiributable 1o

erdinary equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are caleulated by dividing the net profit atributable 1o
ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company {after adjusting for interest on the convertible
preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighled average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Income Taxes

Current Income Tax

Curmrent income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected (o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The income tax rates
and income ax laws used to compute the amount are those that sre enacted or substanfively
enacted as at the end of the reporting period.

Current income tax relating to Hems recognized directly in equity is recognized in equily and not
in the profit or loss in the consolidated statement of income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject fo interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred fmcome Te
Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes al the end of the reporting period.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

*  when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset of liability in a ransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss: and

* inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future
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Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward
benefits of unused net operating loss camyover (MOLCO) and unused tax credils from excess
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT), 10 the extent that it is probable that sufficient future
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the camy
forward of umused BNOLCO and MCIT can be uthized, except:

* when the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 3 business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
fosa; and

= inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with mvestments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint veniures, deferred income [ax assels are recognized only to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax asselts is reviewed al each end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available 1o allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized, Unrecognized
deferred income tax assets are reassessed at cach end of the reporting period and are recognized to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient future taxable profits will allow the deferred
income tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred income 1ax assets and liabilities are measured o the mcome tax rites that are expected 10
apply oy the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on income (ax rates
{and income x laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at each end of the reportmg

period.

Deferred income tax relating 1o items recognized outside profit or loss is recogn ized owlside profit
or loss, Deferred income tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset if, and only if, a begally
enforceable right exists to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and the deferred income tax assets and habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend 1o either setile
current tax labilitics and assets on a net bazis, of to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
similtanecusly, in each future period in which significant amounds of deferred tax assets or
linbilitics are expected 1o be settled or recovered. Subsidiaries operating in the Philippines file
ingome tax returns on an individual basis. Thus, the deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities
are offsct on a per entity basis,

Rcti =il fi
The Group has a funded, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan.

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any},
adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling
is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

LTy
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The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method. This method reflects service rendered by emplovees to the date of
valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning the employees’ projected salarics.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

= Service cost

#  Net interest on the net defined benefit lability or asset
*  Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on
non-routing seltlements are recognized as “Retirement benefits costs™ under personnel costs in the
consolidated statement of income, Past service costs are recognized when plan amendment or
curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by independent qualified actuaries,

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government honds 1o the net defined benefit liability or asset
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as “Interest mcome
(expense)” in the consolidated statement of income.

Remeasurements comprizing actuarial gains and losses, retum on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability ) are recognized
immediately in OC] in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in subsequent periods. Remeasurements
recogrized in OCI after the initial adoption of the Revised PAS 19 arc retained in OC] which is
included in “Loss on remeasurement of retirement benefits plan’ under equity.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policics. Plan asscts are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be puid directly
ter the Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market
price is available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected fure cash
fMows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the
maturity of expecied disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period
until the seitlement of the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the
present value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting definad benefit
asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan,

The Group's right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to seitle a defined
benetit oblyzation is recognized as a separate assel at fair value when and only when
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Emplovee Leave Envitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a lability when they are accrued to the
employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected 1o be settled wholly before twelve (12)
months after the end of the reporting period is recognized for services rendered by emplovess up
i the end of the reporting period.
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Leases

Determination of Wherker an Arrangement Conlaing o Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date, whether fulfillment of the arrangement iz dependent on the usc
of a specific asset or assets or the armangement conveys a right to use the asset, even il that right is
not explicitly specified in an arrangement. A reassessment is made after the inception of the lease
only if one of the following applics:

a.  There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement,

b, A renewal oplion is exercised or extension granied, unless the term of the remewal or
extension was initizlly included in the lease term;

€, There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset,
ar

d.  There is a substantisl change to the asset.

Where a reassessment 8 made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances give rise (o the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Clperating Lease Commitments - Group ay a Lessar

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rent income from operating leases are recognized as
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term or based on the terms of the lease, as applicable.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leascd asset and recognized over the lease term on the basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Cperating Lease Comminments - Group ax o Lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefils of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
Jl-wngnizu.{ as an expense m the consolidated statement of income on a stmight-line basis over the
ease term

Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in Philippine peso based on the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions, Monetary assets and linbilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period.  All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are tuken
to the consolidated statement of income. Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of
histerical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured al fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the datc when the fair value is determined.  The gain or loss
arising on retranslation of non-monetary items is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item.



o

Claims

The: liabilities for unpaid claim costs {including incurred but not reported losses) and claim
adjusiment expenses relating to insurance contracts arc accrued when insured events occur. The
liabilities for unpaid claims are based on the estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims. The
method of determining such cstimates and establishing reserves is contmually reviewed and
updated. Changes in estimates of claim costs resulting from the continuous review process and
differences between estimates and payments for claims are recognized as income or expense for
the period in which the estimates are changed or payments are made. Estimated recoveries on
settled and unsettled claims are evaluated in terms of the estimated realizable values of the
satlviged recoverables and deducied from the liability for unpaid claims. The unpaid claim costs
argaccounted as Claims payable under “Accounts payable and acorued expenses™ account in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as &
result of past event, il is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate assel, butl only when
the reimbursement is virually certain. The expense relaling to any provision is presented in the
consolidated statement of income, net of any reimbursement.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.  These are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodving economic benefits is
remole. Contingent assels are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefit is

prabable,

The Group’s operating businesses are recognized and managed according to the nature of the
products or services offered, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that serves

different markets.

Segment revenue, expenses and performanes include transfers between buziness segments. The
transfers are accounted for at competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for
similar products. Such transfers are eliminated in consolidation.

Events Afier the End of the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additions] information about the Group's financial position at
the end of the reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements, Post year-end events that are net adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
consolidated financial statements when material.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the
Group to make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounis of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reparting period. Future events may occur which will cause the assumptions used in arriving
a1 the estimates to change. The effects of any chanpe in judgments and estimares are reflected in
the consolidated financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasomable under the circumstances. However, actual outcome can differ from these estimates.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's secounting policies, management has made the following
Judaments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant ¢ffect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Determining Functional Currency

Based on the economic substance of underlying circumstances relevant to the Group, the
functional currency of the Group has been determined to be the Philippine peso. The Philippine
peso is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates and it is
the currency that mainly influences the underlying transactions, events and conditions relevant 10
the Ciroup,

Determining Classificalion of Financial Insirumenis

The Group classifies a financial instrument, or its component paris, on initial recognition as a
financial azset, a financial hiabilty or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual agreement and definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its
classification in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Determining Loss of Significant fffuence

The Group assesses whether lack of significant influenee over an associate is evident, Aside from
the presumption that holding of less than 20.0% of the voting power does not give rise io
significant influence, the management also considers other circumstances that may lead them 1o
believe that the Group cannol exercise significant influence over its associate. Such circumsiances
include inability to obtain timely financial information or cannot obtain more information than
investors with significant influence, the Group’s views and economic decisions are not considered
in the operations of the investee, and other investors are opposing the Group's attempt to exercise
significant inlluence. In 2013, the ownership interest of the Group over its investment in Cyber
Bay has decreased from 22.28% 10 10.46% (see Note §) and management assessed that the Group
has lost its significant influence over its investment in Cyber Bay, The Group therefore
reclessified its investment in Cyber Bay as AFS financial asset from investment in associates

Determining Classification of fivestment Properties

The Group classifies its buildings and improvements and land and improvemenis cither as
investment property or owner-occupied property based on its current intentions where it will be
used. When buikdings and improvements as well as land and improvements are held for capital
appreciation or when management is still undecided as to its fubure use, it is classified as
nvestment property. Buildings and improvements and land and improvements which are held for
rent are classified as investment properties.
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Arcecsment Whether an Agreement in o Fingnies or Operating Lecve

Management assesses ai the inception of the lease whether an arrangement is a finance lease or
operating lease based on who bears substantially all the risk and bonefits incidental to the
ownership of the leased item. Based on the management’s assessment, the risk and rewards of
owning the items leased by the Group are retained by the lessor and therefore accounts for such
lease as operating bease,

Assessing Cperating Lease Conumitments - Group o8 Lexsor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment propertics ponfolio. The
Ciroup has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out under operating lease aangements.

Asseising Ciperating Lease Commitments - Group as Lessee

The Group has entered into a lease agreement for the corporate ofTice space and a subsidiary”s
mall operations. The Group has determined that it does not obtain all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets under operating kase arrangements,

Estimates and Assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear are
discussed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due 1o market changes in circumstances arising
beyond the control of the Groap. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Estimaiing Coswanity Logs

As a result of the fire which occurred on September 4, 2012, the Group, in its own initiative, made
an assessment of the extent of the damages sustained on its individual assets, including
receivables. investment properties and property, plant and equipment. The reassessment was
conducted with the joint coordination of the Group's enginesring and operations group and ather
technical consultants, taking into consideration varicus factors such as assets” net book values,
restoration costs and usability as of the reassessment date. Judgment by management was
particularly employed when deciding whether an asset should be provided with full or partial
allowance for losses.

These property losses, with a net book value of B63.25 million are recorded as “Casualty loss™ in
the consolidated statement of income.

Extimarimg Recovery from Insurance

Management estimates that the recorded amount of the recovery from insurance is virtually certain
after an exhaustive review of its existing insurance coverage against the casualty loas incurred and
the discussions with and inspestions conducted by the insurance company, adjusters, and technical
consultants. In 2015 and 2014, the Group recorded recovery from insurance amounting 1o

nil and #269_ 28 million, respectively (see Mote 1),
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Extimativg Allovance for Tmpoivsent Losses on Receivalles ond Areoiinie Chaed by

Related Pariies
The Group reviews its receivables and amounts owed by related parties at each end of the
reporting period te assess whether o provision for impairment should be recorded in the
consolidated statement of income. Tn particular, judgment by management is required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance
required. Such cstimates are based on assumplions about a number of factors and actual results
may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance,

For the receivables, the Group evaluates specific accoums where the Group las information that
certain customers or third parties are unable 1o meet their financial obligations and considers
cumulative assessment for the risk of the collectability of past due accounts. Facts, such as the
Crroup’s length of relationship with the customers or other parties and the customers” ar other
parties’ corrent crédit status, are considered to ascertain the amount of allowance that will be
provided, The allowances are evaluated and adjusted as additional information is received.

For the amounts owed by related parties, the Group wses judgment, based on the best available
facts and circumstances, including but not limited to, assessment of the related panties” operating
aclivilies {active or dormant), business viability and overall capacity to pay, in providing
allowance against the recorded receivable amounts.

Provision for impairment losses on receivables amounted to P2.46 million, PO.73 million and
E20.94 million in 2005, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Recovery on impairment losses on
receivables amounted to 88,01 million, B1.29 million and 2040 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The Group wrote-off allowance for impairment losses on receivables amounted to
#].32 million, ®6.97 million and #0.08 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Receivables
amounted to #4%96.12 million and #603.14 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, net
of allowanee for impairment losses amounting to B301.89 million and P308. 76 million as at

June 30, 20105 and 2014, respectively (see Note ).

Provision for impairment loss on amounts owed by related parties amounted 1o 0,02 millicn in
20015 and nil 2014 and 2013, Reversal of impairment losses on amounts owed by related parties
amounted to nil, nil and #6236 million in 2075, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Group wrote-
off allowance for impairment losses on amounts owed by related parties amounted to nil in 2015
and 2014 and #0.26 million in 2013, Amounts owed by related parties amounted to #0.01 million
and FO.02 million s at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, net of allowance for impairment
losses amounting 1o B1.63 million and B1.61 million as at June 30, 2005 and 2014, respectively
(see Mote 18]

Extimaling Allowance for Inveniory Losses

The Group maintains an allowance for inventory losses. The level of this allowance is evalusted
by management on the basis of factors that affect the recoverability of the inventory, These
factors mclude, but are not limited 1o, the physical condition and location of inventories on hand,
the fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring afier the end of the period 10
the extent that such events conlirm conditions existing at the end of the period, and the purpose for
which the inventory item is held.
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Prowvision for inventory losses amounted to nil, B1.31 million and PT095 million in 2005, 2014
and 201 3, respectively. Reversal of allowange for impairment on inventory losses amounted to
£1,241 million, B4.36 millien and nil in 2005, 20014 and 2013, respectively. The Group wrote-ofT
allowance for imparment losses on inventories amounted fo 28,81 million, #1311 mallion and
P6. 58 million in 2015, 2004 and 2013, respeotively, Carrving values of inventories amounted to
P12.01 million and #18.47 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, net of allowance for
nwenicey losses amounting 1o B7L61 million and P82.02 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively (sce Mote 6).

Estimuaring Allowance for mpairment Losses on Real Estate Held for Sale and Development

The Group maintains an allowance for real estate held for sale and development losses. The level
of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the recoverability
of the real estate for sale and development. These factors include, but are not limited to, the
physical condition and location of real estate for sale and development, the Muctuations of price or
cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the period to the extent that such events
confirm conditions existing at the end of the penod, and the purpose for which the real estate for
sale and development item is held.

There was no impairment losses on real estate held for sale and development recognized in 2015,
2014 and 2013. Real estate held for sale and development amounted 1o P430.10 million and
#429.51 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 7).

Estimating Alflowarnces for Impairment Losses of on AFS Financial Assets and Financial Assets at
F¥eL
The Group recognizes impairment losses on AFS financial assets and financial assets st FVPL
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of such investments below
its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is
‘significant’ or *prolonged” requires judgment. For equity instruments, when determining whether
the decline in value is significant, the Group considers historical volatility of share price (i.c.. the
higher the historical volatility, the greater the decline in fair value before it is likely 1o be regarded
as significant) and the period of time over which the shire price has been depressed (ie., a sudden
decline is less significant than a sustained fall of the same magnitude over a longer period). For
debt instruments, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at
amaortized cost, However, the amount recorded for impairment i the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
the AFS financial assets previously recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Provision for impairment losses on AFS financial assets amounted to #241.19 million,

#2.60 million and P2%1.50 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The fair values of AFS
financial assets amounted to P 1,507.41 million and P1,643.90 million as at June 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively, net of allowance for impairment losses amounting to P533 .29 million and
F294, [0 million a3 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Mote §).

There was no provision for impairment losses on linancial assets at FYPL recognized in 2015 and

2004, As at June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Fair values of the financial assets at FYPL amounted to
F27.99 million and nil, respectively (see Note 9.
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Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on fevestment in an Associale and fvesiment
Properties
PFRE requires that an impairment review be performed when certain impairment indicators are
present. Determining the value of investment properties which requires the determination of
future cash flows expected to be gencrated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such
assets requires the Group to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect its
consolidated Nnancial statements. Future events could cause the Group to conclude that this asset
may not be recoverable. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on
finuncial condition and results of operations of the Group.

There was no provision for impairment loss on investment in an associate recognized in 20135,
2014 and 2013, Investment in an associate amounted 1o B2.57 million and #2.36 million as at
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively (sec Motz 117,

Provision for impairment losses on investment properties amounted to nil, nil and B6.62 million in
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In 2013, the Group recorded the provision for impairment loss
amounting o B6.6G2 million as part of casualty loss in relation e the fire. The carrying value of
investment properties amounied 10 #1,329.02 million and B737.49 million as at June 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively, net of allowance Tor impairment losses amounting to P12.83 million

(sce Mote 12),

Extimating Useful Lives of fnvesmment Propercies, Properity, Plane and Equipment and Soffware
and Development Costy
The estimated useful lives used as bases for depreciating and amortizing the Group's investment
propertics, property, plant and equipment and software and development costs were determined on
the basis of management's assessment of the period within which the benefits of these asset items
are expected to be realized taking into account actual historical informartion on the use of such
assets as well as industry standards and averages applicable to the Group's assets. The Group
estimates the useful lives of its investment properties, property, plant and equipment and software
and development costs based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for
use. The estimated useful lives of investment properties, property, plant and equipment and
software and development costs are reviewed, at least, annually and are updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear and technical or commercial
obsolescence on the use of these assets. [t is possible that fulure results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in the faciors
mentioned above, A reduction in the estimated useful lives of these assets increases depreciation
and amortization and decrease in the corresponding investment properties, property, plant and
equipment and sofiware and development costs,

There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of investment propertics. The camying values
of investment properties amounted fo £1,329.02 million and P737 49 million as at June 30, 2015
and 2014, respectively, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization amounting io

#2.04 million and #1.36 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, net of allowance for
impairment losses on investment properties gmounting to ® 12,83 million (see Note 12).

There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment, The carrving
values of property, plant and equipment amounted to P46.33 million and #672.08 million as at
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization
amounting to P2.21 million and #2.19 million as at Jung 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively {sce
Note 13).
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There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of software costs. The carrying values of
software amounted to #8.80 million and #8.96 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively,
net of accumulsted amortization amounting to P27.14 millien and P23, 18 million as at

June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 14}

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses of Property, Plant and Eqidpmeni, and

Raftware Costs
The Group assesses impairment of property, plant and oquipment, and software costs whenever
events of changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving amount of an asset may not be
recoverable, The factans that the Group considers important which could trigger an impatrment
review include the following:

o significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
resulis;

# significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business: and

& significant negative industry or economic trends.

In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the
cotitinized use of the assets, the Group is required to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect the consolidated financial statements.

These assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss would be recognized
whenever evidence exists that the carrying value is not recoverable. For purposes of assessing
impairment, asseds are grouped at the lowest kevels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows.

An impairment loss is recegnized and charged 1o earnings if the discounted expected future cash
flows are less than the carrying amount. Fair value is estimated by discounting the expected
[uture cash flows using a discount factor that reflects the risk-free rate of interest for a term
consistent with the period of expected cash flows,

The camying values of property, plant and equipment amounted to P46.33 million and

P6T1.08 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, neél of accumulated depreciation and
amonization amounting to P2.21 million and B2.19 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively {see Note 13).

The carrying values of sofiware amounted 10 B8.80 million and P& 96 million as at June 30, 2015
and 2014, respectively, net of accumulated amortization amounting 1o P27.14 million and
P23.18 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively (sce Note 14).

Estimaiing Allowance for Impairment Logses on Nonffnancial (ther Carrent and Nowcurvent
Azzots

The Group provides allowance for losses on prepayments non-financial other current and

noncurrent assets whenever they can no longer be realized. The amounts and timing of recorded

expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized differemt

esfimates. An imcrease in allowance for losses would increase recorded expenses and decrense

non-financial other current and noncurrent assets
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Provisions for impairment losses on nonfinancial other current assets amounted to PO.08 million,
£0.06 million and #0.19 million in 2013, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Group wrote-off
allowsnee for impairment losses on nonfinancial cther current assels amounted o nil,

P0.21 million and #3 46 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. As at June 30, 2013 and
2014, the carrying values of nonfinancial other current assets amounted to B244.73 million and
P232.12 million, respectively, met of allowance for impairment losses amounting to B2.90 million
and P2.82 million as at June 30, 2005 and 2014, respectively {see Note 10).

There was no provision for impabrment losses on nonfinancial other noncurrent assets recognized
in 2015, 2014 and 2013, As at June 30, 2015 and 2014, the carrying values of nonfinancial ether
noncurmen assels amounted o P1E4.39 million and R100.62 million, respectively (see Nate 15).

Claims Liakility Ariving from Insiwance Conltracts

Estimates have to be made both for the expected uliimate cost of claims reported at the financial
reporting period and for the expected ultimate cost of the IBNR claims as at financial reporting
period. It can take a significant period of time before the ultimate claim costs can be established
with certainty. The primary technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified
amd IBNE claims is that of using past claims setilement trends to predict futore claims settlement
trends. At each financial reporting period, prior vear claims estimates are assessed for adequacy
and changes made are charged to current year provision,

The carrying values of claims payvable amounted to P230.61 million and £266.95 million as at
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 16)

Determining Retirement Benefits Liahility

The cost of defined retirement obligation as well as the present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future retirement increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation,
the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligation are highly
sensitive 1o changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each end of the

reporiing period.

Retirement benefit coste amounted to #22.77 million, B23.34 million and P21.35 million in 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively. As at June 30, 2015 and 2014, the retirement benefits liability of the
Group amounted o P96.98 million and P99.19 million, respectively {see Note 231,

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of
government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with
extrapolated maturities comresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation.
Further details about the assumptions used are provided in Note 23,

Assessing Reglizability of Deferred Income Tax Assels

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets at each end of the reporting
period and reduces it 1o the extent thar it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income 1ax assets to be utilized. Significant
Judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred income tax assets that can be recognized
based upoen the likely timing and level of future taxable income together with future planning
strategics, However, there is no assurance that the Group will generate sufficient future taxable
profits to allow all or part of its deferred income tax assets to be utilized,
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Deferred income tax assets recognized in the books amounted to B69.65 million and
P62.62 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Mote 24),

Temporary differences for which no deferred income tax assets were recognized as the
management has asscssed that it is nol probable that sufficient future taxable income will be
available For which the benefit of the deferred income tax assets can be ulilized amounied 1o
P4,643.24 million and #1,236.64 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 24),

Estimaring Confingencies

The Group 15 currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable costs
for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with inside and outside legal
counsel handling the defense in these matters and is based upon the analysis of potential resufts. It
15 possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affecied by changes in
estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings.

Estimating Fair Values of Financial Instrinents

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using
valuation techniques including the discounted cash flows model. The inputs to these models arc
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment
is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. Any change in the fair value of these financial
instruments would dircetly affect the consolidated statement of income and consolidated statemen
of chanpes in equity.

Fair values of financial assets as at June 30, 2015 and 2014 amaunted 1o 83.021.73 million and
B3.243.29 million, respectively, while the fair values of financial lishilities as at June 30, 2015 and
2074 amounted to P1,363.04 million and #876.42 million, respectively (see Note 311

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2015 2014

(In Thousands)
Cash on hand and in banks F56,304 PY1.528
Short-term investments 25,459 280,006
F151,763 BiT1,334

Cash in banks carn interest at the respective bank deposit rates, Short-term investments are made
for varving pericds of up to three (3) months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group and eam interest at the respective shori-term investment rates.

Interest carned from cash in banks amounted to #0.26 million, #0.98 million and #0.32 million in
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, Interest earned from shost-term investments amounted to
B1.42 million, 84,77 million and B5.54 million in 20135, 2004 and 2013, respectively

{sea Note 22).

AR NI ANA Ot
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5. Receivables

nis 2014

iIn Thoussnds)
Trade debiors #140.907 Bi141,187
Insurance receivables 416,29 G, BT
Oithers 240,504 263 835
798,001 91 1.53490
Less allowance for impairment losses 301,585 308,758
P496,116 Ba03,141

Trade debtors are both interest and non-interest bearing and are generally collectible on thirty (30)
days” term. The interest rates used ranges from 5% to 10% per annum.

Insurance receivables consist of premiums receivable, due from ceding companies, reinsurance
recoverable on paid and unpaid losses - faculiative, funds held by ceding companies and
reinsurance accounts receivables and are generally on (sooty) 60 to {one hundred eighty) 180 days”
term.

Other receivables include noninterest-bearing receivables of OLI from Cosco Land Corporation
(CLC) which are due and demandable amounting to $160.45 million and P167.81 million as at
June 30, 2005 and 2014, respectively. These receivables are collateralized by the shares of stock
of Cyber Bay owned by CLC. The receivables from CLC are fully provided with allowance.

Advances 1o suppliers and contractors, advances to officers and employees and interest receivables

akso Torm part of other receivables. These are noninterest-bearing and are generally collectible on
demand.

In 2014, the Parent Company has written-off portion of its advances to service providers and other
receivables amounting to #6.97 million. While in 2015, LCI and OMI has written-off portion of
its trade receivables amounting to PO.E4 million and #0.4% million, respectively

Allewance for impairment losses pertains 1o specific and collective assessments. The movements
of allowance for impairment losses on receivables are as follows:

Trade Insuramnce

debters  reccivables Oihers Total
[In Thousandsy

At July 1, 2012 FT0,081 P7.57h P1o 495 P27, 158
Provisions (Mote 200 ), 759 () 20538
Wrile-off - 77 (7]
Recovery (40Z] - [402)
Reclassification {Note 18] - 25,660 23,666
AL Jume 30, 2013 PO 438 BT 755 P214 05 Pii6241
Provisons (Nowe 20) TR P5EG B By32
Write-oiT Py (6,968 ) [6,970)
Recovery [1.285) - - (1,285
AL Jue 300, 2004 PR 29T B,341 211,120 JDE. 758
Provizions {Mobe 200 35 218 1A% A5
Write-ofT (13207 - - (1,320}
Recovery (649 - {73610} (8,009}

Al June 50, Z00 5 PET BT PE.755 205,253 P30 1,883

UMM




=42 .

Interest earned from trade receivables amounted to nil, B0.07 million and #0.05 million in 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively (ses Mote 22),

fi. Imventories
1015 2014
(In Thousands)
At NRY;

Finished goods P11,130 BIT.7T3

Factory supplics and spare parts 682 701

Sdatenials in transit 194 —

P12,0:06 BI18.474

Movements i the allowance for inventory losses are as follows:
2015 2014
{Im Thousands)

Beginning balances BPR1.016 P97 803
Reversal {1,241) {4.360%
Write-ofl (5,804) (13,105)

Provisions {Mote 200 = LEI3

P71,614 PE2.016

Inventories charged to operations amounted to #1580 million, B34.16 million and P136.40
million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 20).

7. Real Estate Held for Sale and Development

2015 014

(In Thousands)
Land for development 395,549 #I95,509
Homelands 34,554 331,998
B430,103 £8429,507

Land for development pertains to parcels of land located in Calamba, Laguna, Sto. Tomas,
Batangas and San Vicente, Palowan. The composition of cost as at June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as
follows:

M5 2014

(In Thousands)
Land cost B199.239 P0G 230
Construction overhead and other related costs 73,957 73,917
Professional fees 17,932 | 7932
Taxes 4421 4,421
BI05 549 P305 509

Homelands pertain to land held for sale which is located in Calamba, Laguna,
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Movements in the real estafe held for sale and development are as follows:

21s 204

{In Thousandsz)
Balances at beginning of vear B429 507 BIRO.170
Additions in 149,328
Repossessions 57 -
Ennm:s al end of year P430,103 P4 20,507

Additions include taxes, construction overhead and other related costs incurred during the year,

Repossessions pertain to the cost of repossessed land held for sale located in Calamba, Laguna duc

to the delinguent payvment from land buyers.

AFS Financial Asseis

NS 20i4

(In Thowsands)
Listed equity securitics F1,384, 648 B, 300,601
Monlisted equily securities IR1.500 290 661
Cluoted debt securities 159 134 241,655
Unguoted debt securities 16,405 6,082
2,042,696 [.937.000
Allowance for mpairment losses 535,288 294, 101
F1,507,408 Pl.643. 898

AFS financial assets in quoted shares of stock are camied at fair value with cumulative changes in
fair values presented as a separafe account in equity. Meanwhile, unguoted debt and nonlisted
equity AFS financizl assets are based on discounted fture cash flows using rates currently
available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities,

On November 13, 2012, the SEC approved the conversion of debt to equity of Cyber Bay resulting
to & change in percentage ownership of POPI from 22.28% 1o 10.46%. The management assessed
that the Group ceased 1o have significant influence over Cyber Bay. As a result of the reduction in
the ownership mterest and loss of significant influence, the investment in Cvber Bay was
reclassitied to AFS financial assel starting Movember 13, 2012, The Group recognized a gain on
re-measurement of B394.11 million from the reclassification of Cvber Bay investment.

Certain AFS financial assets are reserved investments in accordance with the provisions of the
Insurance Code as security for the benefit of policy holders and creditors of the FPIC,

Movements i the allowance for impairment losses are as folloows:

M5 2014

{In Thousands)
Balances at beginning of year B194,101 R291.501
Provisions 241,187 =601
Balances at end of year P535.288 P2t 101




L4 -

Movements of unrealized valuation gain {losses) on AFS financial assets are as follows:

Mon-Controlling
F_.q_u.il:,r Heddders Interests Tedal
{In Thousands)
July 1, 2012 3,035 PdA1S PAT &5
Ciain {Jess) recogmized dimsetly in equity 65,070 (2,499} 62571
Less transferred from equity 1o
_consolidated statement of incoms (132904} - (132,964 )
Jume 30, 2013 {4,859 2116 (2,743}
Gain {foss) recognized directly in equity 247,849 (2,183} 245 Gl
Losz transferred from equity to
vomsolidated statement of income {159, 189) = (159,139}
Jume 368, 2014 3 801 (67T] B3, 734
Ciain (hess) recognized directly in equity 267 (R3] 251
Lass transferred from equity to
wonsilidaled statement of income (82,002) - (B2.002)
June 30, 2013 FL060 {¥83) | 5]

Procesds from the sale of AFS financial assets amounted to #9459 inillion, B222.95 milliosn and
#2953 .44 million in 2015, 20014 and 2013, respectively, with a corresponding gain on sale of
PE.ES million, #159.19 million and #147.30 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Interest carned from AFS financial assets amounted to B11.75 million, B7.80 million and
P21.98 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Dividend income received on AFS financial assets amounted to 24,23 million, #4.03 million and
P1.32 million in 2005, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

9, Financial Asseis at FVPL

In 2013, the Group has 143,600 redeemable preferred shares with a cost of P27.99 million
recorded as financial nssets at FVPL upon initeal recognition.  Fair value of financial assets at
FVPL as at June 30, 2015 amounted to P27.99 million resulting to an unrealized gain of
FO.2E million. Dividend income earned from these shares amounted to B0.% million,

10, Other Current Assels

2035 2014

(In Thousands)
CWTs B198,258 B1E85961
Input VAT 28.3M) 25,784
Frepavments 14,656 16 E09
Unclaimed claims reserve fund 6,350 6,380
147,624 234934
Less allowance for impairment losses 2895 2819
P144,729 P232.115
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CWTs are available for offset against income tax payable in the future periods.

Input VAT pertains to taxes earned from transactions with VAT registered vendors during the
YT,

Prepayments pertain to prepasd insurance, taxes and licenses and other prepaid expenses that are w
be amortized over a period of one (1) vear.

Unclaimed claims reserve fund pertains to the unclaimed payments on g rade creditors under
Rehabilitation Plan which were deposited 1o MBTC o serve as the Fund. This is equivalent to the
total amount of allowed claims that remain unclaimed as of fling of motion for wermination of
rehabilitation proceedings of the Company. All payments should be taken from the Fund upon
presentation of sufficient evidence of identity. A creditor or worker may obtain payment within
twir (2} vears from the opening of the account and should discharge the Company from ils
obligation. The Fund is classified as carrent asset. The Fund is readily available as payment for
claims and classified under prepayments though there is a certain restriction in its use,

Movements in the allowance for impairment losses are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
(In Thousands)
Balances al beginning of year P1.819 B2.970 P6,239
Provisions (Note 20) 76 6l 193
Write-off = (213} A3.462)
Balances at end of vear B2 RS #2810 B2 o070
11, Investments in an Associate
2015 2014

{In Thousands}
Acquisition costs:

Balkances at end of year £5,959 #3909
Accumulated equity in net losses of associates:
Balances at beginning of vear (3,395) (3.371)
Equity in net income of associates 7 24
Balamces al end of vear (3 388) {3,395
B1.571 B7,564

Summarized combined fimancial stalement information of the associate fallows:

IS 2014
{In Thousands)

Curreni nssets P10,036 FLO,098
Moncurrent asscts 21 21
Total liahilities 20 297
Revenue 213 430
Costs and expenses 266 524
Mel income (boss) is (133}
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12, Inwvestment Properties

2015
Buildings and Land and
Improvemanis Improvements Tatal
{In Thousands)
Cost
Al beginning of vear P2 181,041 Fi131,624 P21 31Z 665
Additions 33,980 137 34,197
Reclass [l 338470 1,030,840
At end of year 2,507, 380 470,331 3377711
Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization
Al beginning of year 1,561,791 E53 1,562,343
Depreciation and amortization
(Moie 207 Bl G43 $24 61,472
Reclass 393,515 18,525 412,040
Al end of year 2015949 1%, 91 2035855
Balance 291431 450 425 1335304
Less: Allowance Tor impairmeni
lsses 12534 - 12834
Mt book values FRTE 597 450,425 P 320,022
2014
Buibdings and Land znd
Improvements Improvements Tutal
{in Thousands)
Cosl
At beginning of year #2, 167,397 Pi31G24 2299021
Additions 15477 = 13477
Write-off {1,833) - {1,833}
Al end of year 2,181,041 131,624 2,312,665
Accumutated Depreciation and
Admrizalion
Al bepinning of year 1,530, 82% 114 1.531.243
Depreciation and amortization
(Moie 20) 12,167 3% 32,305
Wirita-off (1,205) (1,205}
Abend of vear 1,561,791 552 1,562 344
Halance G19250 131,072 TED, 322
Lese; Allowance foe impairment
boszes 2,834 - 12 834
Met book values Bedadla BI131,073 B737 488

Investment propertics of TPl substantially represent leasehold improvements on the lamd leased
from Philippine Mational Railways {PNR} which are wtilized in TPI's office space. mall operations
and held for rentals, Upon adoption of PAS 40, fovestmeens Property, upon its transition in 2005,
TPl chese the cost model and continues 1o carry these mvestment propertics al deemed cost using
their revalued amount as allowed under FFRS.

TFPI's investment properties were valued by independent professionally qualified appraisers.

Fair value represents the price thar would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an grderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).

LR TR
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The appraised property consists of land, other land improvements, and building, machinery and
equipment, located along Claro M. Recto Avenue, within Tondo Manila. The hierarchy in which
the fair value messurement in its entircty s recoenized is at Level 2.

i. Based on the lease contrect, TPI keases a land consisting of sixty nine (69) lots, containing an
aggregate area of 227,773 square meters,

The value of the land was estimated using the Sales Comparison Approach. This is a
comparative approach that considers the sale of similar or substitule properties and related
market data and establishes a value estimate by processcs involving comparison.  Listings and
offerings may also be considered.

b. The method used to determine the value of other land improvements and building, machinery
and equipment is the Sales Comparison Approach, This 1s a comparative approach to the value
of the property or another asset that considers as a substitute for the purchase of a given
property, the possibility of constructing another property that is a replica of, or equivalent to the
arigmal or one that could furnish equal utility with no undwe cost resulting from delay, [t is
based an the reproduction or replacement cost of the subject property or assel, less total
{accrued) depreciation.

LC1 has historically classitied land and improvements and buildings and improvements at
revalued amounts as property, plant and equipment, On July 1, 2014, LC1 transferred its land and
improvements and buildings and improvements at revalued amounts to investment property valued
at cost. The transfer was made in accordance with PAS 40, fnvestment Property since the
properties were held by the Company to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than
fior use in the production or supply of goeds or services or for administrative pumoses or sale in
the ordinary course of business.

TPl and LCT has assessed that the highest and best use for its investment properties held for lease
% ifs current use.

Based on the katest appraisal reponts, as determined by an independent firm of appraisers, the
appraised values of the TPI's and LCI's investiment properties amounted to B4_38 billion as at
June 30, 2015 and 2014.

In secordance with the general requirement under PFRS 1, the Group closed out the “Revaluation
Reserve™ on mvestment properties account 1o retained eamings which pertains to the remaining
balance of the deemed cost adjustment on investment properties account which arose when the
Group transitioned {0 PFRS in 2005,

O June 30, 2015 and 2014, the net book values of these propertics follow:

2015 2014
(I Thousands)
Al net book value,
Oeiginal ¢ost B20%.580 PGB
Revaluation reserve 495,512 264,911
BETe4,102 B583,770
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As discussed in Note 1, certain investment properties were damaged by the fire which occurred on
September 4, 2012, After the assessment on the extent of the damage on the individual assets by
the Company™s engincering and operations group, and together with third party technical
consultants, investment properties that were completely destroved were written off and those that
were partially damaged were impaired, These property losses are recorded as “Casualty loss™ in
the consolidated statements of income.

In 2014, the Company written-off the remaining carrving value of Boni Plaza amounting to

P0.34 million and the allowance for impairment loss recognized in 2013 amounting 1o

#0.29 million as the demolition of CB1 affected the operations of Boni Plaza, The property losses
on the remaining camying velue of Boni Plaza are recorded as “Loss on write-ofT on investment
properties” in the consolidated statements of income.

Movements in the allowance for impairment losses on investment propertics are as follows:

2015 2014
{In Thousands)
Beginning balance F12,534 RB13174
Write-off - (340}
Fi12,534 Bl12.834

Below 15 the detail of casualty loss sustained by the Group on investment propertes:

Accumulated Allowanee for Casualty
Cost__ depreciation Write- off  impairment Loss

(In Thousands’)
Cluster Building 1 PR, 144 ey Pia 450 L PE6459
Cluster Building 2 45,300 20,177 6,281 6281
Bonifacie Plaza I,834 1,674 34 340
P125.377 P43, 141 F36.150 P66l 63,080

Rental revenie from investment properties amaounted to B4 14 48 million, P02, 52 million and
41980 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Direct oparating expenses incurred for
investment properties amounted to 21281 million, #210.%6 million and P233.940 million in 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively.
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment

205
Fermiluie,
Elachinery Fiviwres  Condominism adel
Leasehokd aad Tragsporiaiosn amd Units and
Improvements  Fqwipmost Egmigment  E menl  Imprevemenis  Eqaipmear Toral
iIm Thamsands)
Cnsd
At beginsing of vesr B4R RIS S1T Flnasd PHB 557 R FTA%3 PLIaT 506
Addiiiony s 1,268 )| LOR? - 1448 THET
Diispresals = 4% ] - - (12duy
Al end of year 13 1006 550 40,9357 01,6844 8,691 8533 11534623
Accomuiied Deprecintion amd
A e fho s
At hepinning olvear 6517 206%,104 JL083 ¥1631 4,404 3407 LI1%3m
Depreciation and
amartizalion
_ {Mote 20) bl S0 3133 L3 LB 2472 14304
s paga b - [ELN] [RaRy - - - (1335}
Al end of year 6,735 2I69A17 14598 E5.TR A2 b P e ] el
Met Book YValwes #5102 ¥16,773 6. 335 #3800 BT P2.754 P46 324
2015
Land and Buildings and
Improvements  [mprovemenis Total
(In Thousards)
At revalued amounis:
Al I:lliil'lulng of year FI34.470 BAI2ATY B, 050,849
Heclassification o Invesiment
property (338, 47T0) {69237 i 1,030, B9y
At end of vear = = X
Accumulated deprecintion and
amartization
At beginning of year L8526 3516 412,042
Reclussification a5 Investment
properiy (18,516) (393.516) (412,042
Al end of vear = x o
Mot ook values B ¥ [~
.E_I-‘l
Mackanery Fumicsis, [T Fe———
Lol d il Ieusponaioe  Fiomees and Limals sl Hric|
Improeeramis  Equepeadin E i pive- 1 Eignijrnerd Ieprarememia Equpmmi Tl
¢L8 Thangmnds)
Cind
AL bep il O [ i PE R (AR L B R ] a1 B 533 ] P44 18
Aaddiinges 57 1184 [BeliH] 1527 L w SAN
Tasposats - BE2) L0y - - ARE ]
Bl i licadioe z FIRLEN k : [ 207
AL cnd of year L] léﬂr !!El A (R EL LA 7183 L4759
Aot el Dotz
aful Asrtiealicn
Al I:t,g_ll.l'lln[ el e EIT 2 500 Db ]I 0} T, 748 V187 1565 L1EnaTy
Dexreoialios ani
amdre | ami oo (Pt 1) b1 Hi] 1153 T el A6 ny 1042 14504
mﬂi - CEATI J[Ij i1, 133
Alcsdal vear BATT___ 3065 198 AT AT ERTIT T LI
HMed Book ' alisac P31 i“i-laﬁ-}'l #1310 PG P‘I£EE P1.636 P32 Th
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M4
Land and Buildings and
I provements Improvaments Total
{In Thowsands)
At revalued amoems:
Al beginning of year F338.470 PaR7, 580 1,026,059
Additions - 4,790 4,790
At end of vear 338,470 692379 1,053,849
Acoumulated depreciation and amortizaton
At beginning of year 17,846 367,332 385,178
Deépreciation and amortization
(Note 20) 6310 26,154 26,864
Al erad of vear I 8,526 193,516 412,042
Met book values SR F298, 863 18, RO7

Certain items of property, plant and equipment identified as idle and included under machinery
and equipment were written down to their estimated recoverable amounts,

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment was recognized in 2005 and 2004 and 2013
amounting to B15.34 million, B6.20 million and #1.21 million respectively.

The fair value of land and mprovements and bildimgs and improvements, which has been
determined based on the latest valuations performed by Asian Appraizal Company, Inc. (Asian
Appraizal) dated July 23, 2003, exceeds its carrying cost. Azian Appraisal is an industry specialist
in valuing theze nvpes of properties. Revaluabion increment in properties amounted o nil and
#252.23 million in 2013 and 2014, respectively.

In 200 5, the Company fransferred its land and improvements ond buildings and improvements at
revatued amounts from property, plant and equipment to investment property valued at cost to
reflect the change in use of the properties on July 1, 2014 (see Note 10). The reclassification of
land and improvements and buildings and improvements at revalued amounis 1o investment

property at cost.

As ot June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Greup continucs to utilize fully depreciated propenty, plant and
cguipment with an aggregate acquisition cost amounting to P66.15 million and P1,884.59 million,
respectively,

As discussed in Note 1, certain property, plant and equipment were damaged by the fire which
occurred on September 4, 2012, Afier the assessment on the extent of the damage on the
individual assets by the Company’s enginecring and operations group, and tegether with thind
party technical consultants, property, plant and equipment that were completely destroved were
written ofl and those that were partially damaged were impaired. These property Josses are
recorded as “Casualty boss" in the consolidated statement of income.

Below is the detail of casualty loss sustained by the Group on property, plant and equipment:

Accumulated
Cost  depreciation Write- off  Casualiv Loss
(In Thowsands)
Cluster Building 1 P434 B30 B3 P21
Cluster Building 2 211 199 12 |2
TPI-CHfices 1,836 1,70 132 132
P50 P2.134 P67 F157

A O A
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14. Software Costs

2015 2014
(Tn Thousands)
At cost:
Beginning balances £32,133 BZ7.952
Additions 3505 4,183
Ending balances 35.940 32,133
Accumulated amortization:
Beginning halances 213,178 19,774
Amortization (Note 20 3,962 3404
Ending balances 27,140 23,178
Met beok values PR.ADD PR UST
15. Orther Noncorrent Assets
2015 214
(In Thousands)
Advance rental P115264
Deferred acquisition cost 212,395 25,641
Deferred reinsurance premiums 12,141 24,055
Refundable deposits 19,637 27.313
Deferred input VAT 9,111 9,697
Spare parts and supplics 8,630 7.712
Prepaid expenses 568 532
Orthers 6,480 10,953
B10d.226 Bl106,207

Advance rental paid by the Company to PMR for the renewal of the lease contract which will be
amortized for 25 years.

Dieferred acquisition cost pertains to the unamortized acquisition costs incurred during the period
that are related (o securing new msurance contracts and or renewing existing insurance confracts.

Dieferred reinsurance premiums penain to the unexpired periods of the reinsurance premivms
ceded at the end of the reporting period.

Refundable deposits pertain to deposits made to utility companies, other suppliers and various
miscellaneous deposits,

Deferred input VAT arizes from the purchase of services on credit by the Group which is not vet
paid as at yearend.

Spare parts and supplies pertain to supplies, materials and spare parts for office and
building maintenance of TPL

Prepaid expenses comprise of advances o insurance companies [or personal accident, term life
and fire and deposits to lessors which shall be applied in the future,



e

Unclaimed claims reserve fund pertains to fund deposited to MBTC for payment for Class 3
creditors of LCI (see Mote 1)

Others consist mainly of various assets that are individually immaterial.

. Accounts Payable and Acerued Expenses

2015 2014
{In Thou=ands)

Claims payables 130,008 F266,931
Reserves for uncamed premiums 106,092 111,909
Agcrued expenscs 118,437 936590
Noritrade payables 91,689 92,903
Trade payables 49,197 46,9497
Due to reinswrers and ceding companies 41,865 29132
Cihers 29,374 32,173
P667,262 PG673,755

Claims pavahles pertain to the estimated ultimate cost of incurred but not settled claims as a1 the
reporting period.

Reserves for unearned premmims are portion of the premiums that relates to unexpired perinds.
Accrued expenses inclede janitorial, security, utilities and other accrued expenses,

The management reversed accrual of certain provisions amounting to ail in 2015, 2014 and
243.34 million, respectively,

Due to reinsurers and ceding companies refers to the balance of premium and claims with respect
to accepted and ceded reinsurance agreement whether directly or through brokers,

The terms and conditions of the above payables are as follows:

=  Trade payables and accrued expenses are noninterest-beanng and are normally scttled on
thirry (307 days™ term.

* All other pavables are noninterest-bearing and have an average term ol one (1) year.
As mentioned in Note |, a3 a result of the approval of the Court of the Third Amended and

Restated RP on December 20, 2012, the Group recognized a gain on condonation of debt from
trade creditors amounting to 819928 million.
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17. Rental and Other Deposits

2018 20114
e wwitbidn Beyomd Drue within Bevornd
Ome Year  One Year Total e Year One Year Total
(1n Thousand=)
Rental deposits F28,2%5 #11,324 396149 B50.451 P4,979 P55.432
Socurity deposits 72,297 31,344 193,631 0,757 I&619 B9 370
Dreferred rent 26,643 32,937 59,584 34,998 37196 47,71
Customer deposits 13,222 1,582 14,804 L3IT . . o= 4553 -3, 880
Construction ond £, L1, 4,167 8BS q.1%2 3,621 TEL:
Other deposits 3915 3987 7.912 4958 3,510 B,44%

F143,230 F83.331 133,561 FI66.635 48,088 F214.743

Deposits include rental, security, customer, construction bond and other deposits paid by tenants
to the Gioup on the leased properties which are refundable at the end of the contract,

Deferred rent pertaing to rent received in advance amounted to B59,58 million and #4779 million
a5 ot June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Customer deposits consist of priority premivms paid by tenants which serve as their reservation
deposits. Discounted security deposits amounted o B13.29 million and P9 12 million as at
Jume 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively {see Mote 27).

I8, Related Party Transactions

Related party relationship exisis when one party has the ability 1o control, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediarics, the other party or exercise significant influence over the ather
party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exisis between and/or
among entities, which are under commen control with the reporting enterprises and its key
management personnel, directors or its stockhoblders, In considering each related party
relationship, attention is directed 10 the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal
form.

The Parent Company &nd its subsidiaries, in their normal course of business, have entered into

transactions with related parties principally consisting of noninterest-bearing advances with no
fixed repavment terms and are due and demandabla.

ARUE AL h



Account balances with related parties, other than intra-group balances which are eliminated in
consolidation, are as follows:

Chatstanding
Cmtepary At Volume Halance lermix Coenditions
{In Thousnnds)
Awuraints evved by releted pariies:
Ulvidler covmanan coodrnl
Civoman Philippines, In; 1018 B2 F1,628  Demandable and  Unsecured, non-
I k] PLE2G coflectiabe ot Imierest bearing,
hermcmd ™ with AT el
of PLAZS, and
ungunronieed
(icneyx Investments Comn s - 6 Demandsble and Upsseuiod,
e HE - b il lectinhe an noninleres|
demand bearing,
i Imgainmen,
Al umguaringeed
Fadal 25 ] FI6%4
Elul 20Hi4 bt Pl 63
2015 2014
{In Thowsands)
Amounts owed by related parties P1.634 Pl.632
Less allowance for impairment losses 1,625 1,610
Fo 2

Movements of allowance for impairment losses on amounts owed by related parties are as follows:

s 2014 2013
{In Thowsands)

Balmces ot beginnmg of year Fl.010 PL&LD PR7 995
Provision for the vear 15 = z
Reversal during the year - - £fd 62}
Write-of T during the vear - - (257)
Reclassification {Note 5) - - (23,666)
Balanees at end of vear ¥1,625 P60 1,610

This assessment 18 undertuken at each financial year-end by examining the financial position of the
related parties and the market in which the related parties operate.

Signifscant transactions entered into among subsidiaries other than advances include:
*  Insurance premium coverage for certain properties of the subsidiaries (see Nate 1).
» Condonation of debt as a result of the RP amounting to nil, 21,4908 milfion and
P2.630.2 million in June 30, 2015, 2004 and 2013, respectively (see Note 1),
» Managemen contract and service agreement between the parent company and a subsidiary.

Compensation of key management personnel, including retirement and other benefits, amonnted 1o
BTE.1 million, P7 1K million and #73.2 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively
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Retirement Fund
The Group's retivement fund i being held in trust by a trustee bank. The carrying amount and fair
value of the retirement fund follows:

2015 2014
{In Thousands}
Carrying value B163.470 P135,002
Fair value 163,470 135,062
The retirement fand consists of the following (see Mote 23): R e

2015 2014

Cash 5.49% 31.40%:

Equity 72.85% 65.20%

Fixed income 4.96% 3.30%
Others 16.70% 0.10%

1ML % R %

There were no other transactions made between the Group or its parent company and the
retirement fund during the year.

19,

Subscription Payable

Cyber Bay and Cenitral Bay
On April 25, 1993, Ceniral Bay, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cyber Bay, entered into a Joint

Venture Agreement with the Philippine Reclamation Authority (PRA; formerly Public Estates
Authority) for the complete and entire reclamation and hogizontal developinent of a portion of the
Manila-Cavite Coastal Road and Reclamation Project (the Project) consisting of three partially
reclaimed and substantially eroded islands (the Three Islands) along Emilio Aguinalde Boulevard
in Parafiaque and Las Pifas, Metro Manila, with a combined total area of 1578 hectares, another
area of 24.2.2 hectares contiguous to the Three Islands and, at Central Bay's option as approved by
the PRLA, an additional 330 hectares more or less to regularize the configuration of the reclaimed
area,

On March 30, 1999, the PRA and Central Bay cxecuted an Amended Joint Venture Agresment
(AJVA) o enhance the Philippine Government's share and benefits from the Project which was
approved by the Office of the President of the Philippines on May 28, 1999

On July 9, 2002, the Supreme Court (SC) (in the case entitled “Francisco Chavez vs. Amari
Coastal Bay and Reclamation Corp.™) issued a ruling declaring the AIVA null and void.

Accordingly, 'RA and Ceniral Bay were permanently enjoined from implementing the AJVA, On
July 26, 2002, Central Bay filed a Motion for Reconsideration (MR of said SC decision. On

May 6, 2003, the SC En Banc denied with finality Central Bay's MR. On May 15, 2003, Central
Bay filed a Motion for Leave to Admit Second ME. In an En Banc Resolution of the SC dated
July 8, 2003, the SC resolved to admit the Second MR of Central Bay.

On November 11, 2003, the SC rendered & 7-7 split decision on Central Bay s Second MR,

Because of the new issues raised in the SCs latest resolution that were never iried or heard in the
case, Central Bay was constrained to file on December 5, 2003 a Motion for Re-deliberation of the
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SC% latest resolution which motion was denied with finality by the SC. With the nullification of
the AJVA, Ceniral Bay has suspended all Project operations.

On August 10, 2007, in view of the failure by the PRA to comply with its obligations and
representations under the AJVA, Cyber Bay and Central Bay have filed their claims for
reimbrursement of Project expenses in the amount of B10.2 billion swih the FRA. Cyber Bay and
Central Bay provided the PRA with the summary and details of their claims on

Seplember 5, 2007,

On July 15, 2008, Cyber Bay sent a follow-up letter 1o the PRA. The PRA, in its letter dated
July 18, 2008, informed Cyber Bay that s claim is suill being evaluated by the PRA.

Az at June 30, 2015 and 2014 the Parent Company as unpaid subscription in Cyber Bay
amounting 1o #481.68 million, which is presented as “Subscriptions Payable™ in the consolidated
statements of fimancial position, Cyber Bay under “AFS financial assets™ amounted 1o

F6 10,76 million and #930.03 million as at June 30, 2005 and 2014, respectivelv, net of allowance
fowr impairment losses amounted to B327.48 million and B291.30 million as at

June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

0. Cost of Goods Sold, Services and Operating Expenses

2015 2014 013
{In Thousands)
Persomne] expenses (Kote 21) 204,950 P2i023] EXr0 132
Bental (Mete 27) o9, 801 R 1 5dh
Deprecistion and amartization
(Motes 12, 13 and 14) 79,747 H1,675 B5,007
Share in CUSA related expenses 56,304 B 356 I 16,7346
Taxes and licenses An93s AT R 21,300
Profissional nnd legal fees 28,970 21.563 11,253
Materinls used and changes in
mveniories (Mote &) 15,799 34,158 136,398
Insurance 13127 B24% B.00O2
Jnnitorial and security services 11,670 10,436 10,809
Communication and transportation B86% 0,236 11,488
Marketing expenses 7,459 T.852 24461
Supplies and repairs 5153 7,158 23,486
Kepresentations 2,163 [ 255 3,359
Frovision for imparrment [osses =
riet of recovery (Modes 3,
fi and 1400 2,504 1.0% 1,682
Lhtilities and fuel - - B9, 154
Othees 14,782 16818 13,3466
PE6Y,TIY PO 4TS P, 5 80
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21. Personnel Expenses

s M4 M3
{In Thouzands)
Compensation and employee benefits 184,705 F191.008 P05 886
Retirement benefits costs (Note 23) 20,275 19,223 14,246
204,980 F210,23 | P120,132
21. Interest Income (Expense) and Bank Charges - nei
e : 2015 2004 3013
Interest income; (I Thousands)
AFS financial asaers ¥i, 164 F P
Shosrt-term investmcnts
(Mate 4 1421 4,770 5535
Cazh in banks (Mote 4) 260 FTH 315
Receivables (Mot 5) I el 46
HTM investments - - 180
4,846 5819 6,076
[miterest expense and bank
charpes:
Ratirement benefirs liability
(Mot 23) 1498 G116 100
Bank charges 444 1,354 62
Interest expense - 175
Oihers T - 15
3,021 7,685 700
£1.815 (P H6A6) (Pl.R45)

23, Retirement Plan

The Giroup has a funded, noncontributory retirement

plan covering all its regular employees. The

plan provides for retirement, separation, dizability and death benefits to its members. The normal

relirement bencfit is based on o percentage of the employees’ final

af credited service.

The latest independent actuarial valuation dated August
projected unit credit method in accordance with PAS 19,

monthly salury for every year

18, 2015 was determined using the

The following tables summarize the funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated

statements of financial position, and the com
in the consolidated statements of income for

ponents of the net refirement benefit costs recognized
the relirement plan:

20135 2014

Retireneat benefiis liability:

{In Thousands)

Present value of obligation (PVO) 271,311 PI42 467
Fair value of olan ssscis 174,346 {143,282}
Unfunded obhigation F96,075 POG 185
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s 2014
(In Thousands)
Retirement benelits costs:
Current service cost P2,2T5 20,843
Interest cost - net {Mote 223 2,498 6,116
Past service cost - [ 1.6200
F2.773 F13,319
Movements i the retirement benefits liability are as follows: " e
s 2014
{In Thousards)
Balances al beginning of vear BOU 185 Pl3E319
Benefit expense 232773 25,310
Actuarial losses fgams) - net E,745 (8,592
Actuwal contributions (30,718) (53,8813
Halances at end of vear FOGO97S #0401 85
Changes in the PVO arc as follows:
2015 2014
(In Thonsands)
Balances at beginning of year F142.467 P231.306
Current service cosi 20,275 20,843
Interest cost 10,031 1 0.980
Benefiis paid (.615) (9,648)
Actuarial gain 8,176 (7.497)
Past service cost - (3.727)
Balances at end of vear B171,311 P242.467
Changes in fair value of plan assets are as follows:
s 2014
{in Thousands)
Balances at beginning of year P143,2R2 O3, 107
Actual contributions 30,727 55,881
[rtesest incarme 7,534 4,864
Actuanial gain on pinn asscts 2,431 1,03
Benelz paid (9.628H) {(11,755)
Dalances ot end of year P174.346 £143,282

The categories of plan assets as a percentage of fair value of the tolal plan assels are as follows:

2015 2014

Cash 15.39% 31 405
Equity £8.63% 65.20%
Fixed income 4.04% 3.30%
Oithers 11.94% 0.10%%
100.0% 1010.0%%
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The Group expects to contribute BT8.7 million to the retirement plan in 2016,

The principel assumptinns used to determine pension for the Group are as follows

2015 2014

Discouni rates 4.82%% 3.2

Expected rates of return on plan assets 6.00% b6.00%%

Salary increase rate T.50% 7.50%

Amounts For the current and previous four (4) years are as follows: 3 FL

2IRLS 2014 2013 20 2 2011

ln Theusands)

Ehzlinzl benefit abligation [ ol L P22 46T PXL506 PIe,Ez0 P111.05%

I"lan gsscis 167 328 143 TE1 03,197 T, K08 43403

Unfinded vhligation F103,993 Pau 1 K5 [TEFEILE Lanz T
Experence adjusiment on pilan

lighilities - loss { gang { i) [21.676] 6§ 240 {3275} iTE
Experience adjustnwent on plon

assens - gainloss) 44 4 565 4,714 (7271 LREL

Change in aetusrial saunptions 2,454 (1,004 20,703 15,605 [ rlil

24, Income Toxes

The Growp's current provision for income tax in 2015 and 2014 represents regular corporate

income tax;

inls 2014 2013
(In Thousends)
Curren FI5T2I 0,103 B5.974
Fimial 3499 14835 3407
Dreferred (8, 148) 0 3 {3,801
11,564 Ph1,950 F5,500

The reconciliation of the statutory income tax rates to the effective income tax rates follows:

205 2014 2013
Ad sfafbory 1ax rages JLANG 30.0% I0.0%0
Additions to freductions in) meome
s resalting from
Exempl moome from
cxtinguishment of debt - {165 (31.6)
Ciain on sale of AFS mvesiments 0.9 {(.m (24}
Expired NOLCC (15.3) (& 1.4
Movement in unrecognized
deferred income tax assets {28.1) (%.6) (8.1}
Imterest meome subjocted to
final taxes {1.3) (0.1) (0.4
Expired MCIT i0.6) i1 0.1

{Forwenel)



L 2014 2013
Exempt meatie from dividend RO - -
Dhilistion ke on reversal of
allowance = 3.0
Ober nemiaxable mesme - .5 1.
Others {0.9) -
AL cffcetive tax rates {B.4%%) 3.1% - 0.3%

The significant components of the deferred income tax liahilities - net of the Groop arg ag follows:

2015 2004
(T Thousands)

Dieferred income nx assels:

Casualty loss #18.974 P1E.974
Deferred rent 17874 14,338

Allowance for impairment losses on
receivithles 15,425 11,976
Unamortized past service cost 0,605 &, 704
Retirement benelits liability 0,90 5,041
Uncarned reni - k1 i)
Deferred reinsurance commission 1,393 =
Dthers 1,391 2,268
69,652 62,618

Deferred meome tax liabilities:
Revaluation increment on property, plant, and

equipment (108, 100) {108,100
Recovery on insurance (98.382) (98.382)
Revaleation reserve on investment properiies (75,149) (7T9.474)
Remeasurement ain on retirement (6,982) (9,280)
Deferred acquisition cost (6,753) -
Undepreciated capitalized rent, interest and

custons duties _ (6.474) (6.406]
Unrealized gain on valuation of AFS {1,B65) {163}
Retirement plan assets (661) (61}
Accroed rent income 327 (1,606)
Unrealized gam on valuation of FWPL (150)

Unrealized foreign exchange pain {28} )
(304.217) {104,179}
(P234,565) (P241,561)

Deferred income Tax assels are recognized only to the extent that taxable income will be availabie
ngainst which the deferred income tax assets can be used. The Group reassesses the unrecognized
deferred income tax assels on the following deductible temporary differences and recognizes the
previoushy unrecogmized deferred income tax assels to the estent that it has become probable that
future taxable income would allow the deferred income tax assels 10 be recovered:
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IS 2014
(I Thousands)
ML BI366,267 EEERLE
Allowance for impairment losses on receivables,
other current asseis, inventories and others 4,203,175 674.971
Retirement benefits lability TR 463 93,181
Lossi{gaing on remeasurément of relirement
henefits plan (49,085) 84,006
Unamertized past service cost 44,110 38T
MCIT 2,950 1 856
Accrued rent 313 el
Unrealized foreign exchange losses 36 o3
Excess of reserve for uneamed premiums b =
4,643,220 1,236,636

A at June 30, 2005, the Company has NOLOO and BMCIT that can be claimed as deduciion fram
future taxable income and tax due, respectively:

Yeor incurred Expiration Date MOLCD MCIT
2013 206 P137,731 P64
2014 2017 112,218 214
2015 208 46,744 1338

P296.643 #2016

The following are the movements in NOLCO as at June 30, 2015 and 2014:

20115 2014

! (In Thousands)
Balances at beginning of vear B342.585 RI102.473
Addions 46,744 112218
Expirations {92.636) (72.106)
B296.6493 P342 585

The following are the movements in MCIT as at June 30, 2015 and 2014;

1015 2014
{In Thousands}
Balances af beginning of yvear 1854 B3,189
Additions 1,338 214
Expirations {1,178} (1,547}
P2,016 P1.856

The Giroup did not avail of the opticnal standard deduction in 2015, 2014 and 2013,

LT
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25, Eamings Per Shore

The following table presents information necessary to calculate basic carnings per share:

2015 2314 2013
(|l Thousands)
a.  Mel income abiributable to
wquity holders of the Paremt (F262,453) P210.618 PT28,.630
b.  Weighted uverage number of
shiares E;ﬁ']',ll! 2,367,149 2,367,149
Basic enmings per share {a'h) {PD.11) B B0.31

26. Segment Information

Business Seements

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according 10 the nature
of services provided and the different markets served. with each segment represeniing a sirategic
busmess unit.

The industry segments where the Parent Company znd its subsidiaries and associates operate are
as follows:

=  Holding company
= Financial services - insurance and related brokerage
= Real estate - property development

«  Manufaciuring and distribution - manufacture and distnbution of beverage and ceramic tiles
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27. Long-term Lease

On Augusi 28, 1990, TPI, a subsidiary, through a deed of assignment, acquired all the rights, titles,
interests and obligations of Gotesco Investment, Ine. on a contract of lease of the land owned by
PNR. for the Tutuban Terminal and where the TPI’s mall is located, The contract provided for a
payment of 4 guaranteed minimum annual rental plus a cemain percentage of gross sales. The
bease covers a period of twenty five (25) yvears until 2014 and is automatically renewable for
another twenty five (25) years subject to compliance with the terms and conditions of the lease
agreement.

On December 22, 2009, TPl renewed its lease contract with PNR for another twenity five (25)
years beginning September 5, 2014, the end of the original lease agreement. Reat expense
charged to operations amounted to P99.80 million, POO.E2 million and F92.54 million in 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 20,

As at June 30, 2015 and 2014, the aggregate annual commitments on these exizting lease
agreemenits for the succeeding years are as follows:

2018 2014
{In Thousands)
Less than one (1) vear Pl37.614 Pi121,991
Mare than one (1) vear but not mare than
five (3) vears HE9,402 G20, 835
Muore than five (3) yvears 3056840 3238920
B3, 883,856 #3,98 1,746

Leasehold rights pertaining 1o the leased property has a book value of il as at
June: 30, 20015 and 2014,

Giroup as a Lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its buildings, These leases have
remaining terms of one (1) year to less than five (5) vears. Renewals are subject to the mutual
comsent of the lessor and the lessec,

Temants are required (o post security deposits, which shall be refunded, without interest, within
sixty (60) days afier the cxpiration of the lease period, deducting the amount of damages 1o the
leased premises, if any. The discounted amount of noncurrent rental depasits amounted to
#13.3 million and 29,1 million as at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

L
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The table befow shows the movement analysis of the carrying value of noncurrent security deposits as
at June 30, 2015

= e 2015 2014
{In Thausands)

Undiscounted amount at beginning of vear Fii241 B5,663

Additions - 4,324 4,578

- 14,565 - Hibdd |

Discoun on securily deposit:

Balance at beginning of vear 1,121 088

Addition 445 f2d
Acerction of inferest (291} (195}
Balance al end of vear 1,275 L1211

Net carrying value #13,290 #9,120

Accretion of imerest for the fiscal year ended June 20, 2015 is included under “Other Income
{Charges)” in the consolidated statement of income.

015 2014
(In Thousands)
Beginning of year E1,107 Pos4
Additions 446 627
Amortization = 1372 (204)
Balance at end of vear P1.181 B, 107

The excess of the principal amounts of the rent deposits over the carrying values is presented as
“Deferred rent income™ in the consolidated statements of financial position, Deferred rent income
15 amortized 1o rent revene in the statements of comprehensive income over the lease term using
the straight-line method,

28.

Contingencics

I'hz Group is contingently liable for lawsnits or claims, and assessmonts, which are either pending
decision by the courts or under negotiation. Management and its legal counsels believe that the
eventual outcome of these lawsuits or claims will not have a material effect on the consalidated
financial statements. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially
affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these
proceedings,

. Events after the Reporting Perdod

On August 14, 20135, the Group entered inte an agreement with Ayals Lind, Tne, ( AL whoreby
ALL will subseribe to 2, 500,000,000 common shares of stock of the Ciroop or 51.36% equity
mterest in the Group (which will come from Group’s increase in avthorized capital stock) For a
totzl consideration of P5.625 billion, subject to certain terms and conditions.

The Group, threugh its wholly-owned subsidiary, TPI, owns Tutuban Center in Manila City. With
the entry of ALI the Group will be able to benefit from the expertise and resources of ALl and
optimize the development of its property assets, especially Tuluban Center. Tutuban Center,
which sits on a 20-hectare property. will be the location of the North South Railvay Project
Tranzfer Station which will interconnect with the LRT 2 West Station.

(AL O e
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In connectzon with the foregoing, on August 13, 2015, the BOD of the Group approved the
amendment of its Articles of Incorporation, specifically: (1) Article Sixth - to increase the number
of its directors from 7 to 9; and (2) Article Seventh - to increase its authorized capital stock from
2.4 billion 1o B7.5 billion.

Cin Sepiember 7, 2015, the Group sold its investment properties located in Mandave City, Cebu, as
diseussed in Note 12, for P432.6 million. The sale was approved by the BOD on
September 4, 2015,

30,

Fimancial Risk Management Objectives, Policies and Capital Management

The Group has various financial instruments such as cash and cash equivabents, receivables,
amounts owed by to related parties, AFS financial assets, FVPL investments, deposits under other
current assets and subscriptions payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments s to
raise funds and maintain continuity of funding and financial Aexibil ity for the Group. The Group
has other financial kabilities such as accounts pavable and aceried expenses and rental and other
deposits, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks from the use of financial instruments arc credit risk, liguidity risk, foreign currency
risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk. The Group's BOD reviews and approves policies for
managing these risks as summarized below.

Credit Rivk
The Group's credit risk originates from the potential loss arising from any failure by
counterparties to fulfill their obligations, as and when they fall due.

The Group frades only with recognized, reputable and creditworthy third parties and’or transacts
only with mstitutions and/or banks which have demonstrated financial soundness, It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credi
verification procedures,

The Group’s gross maximum exposure to credit risk of its financial azsets, which mainly comprise
of cash, excluding cash on hand, receivables, amounts owed by related partics, AFS investnenis
and HTM investments arises from defeult of the counterpary which has o maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amount of these instruments at reporting date. '
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Credit quality of neither past due nor impaived financial assel
The credit quality of financial assets i being managed by the Group by groupng its financial
asscts into twor (a) High grade financial assets arc those that are cument and callectible

{b) Standard grade financial assets need to be consistently followed up but are still collectible.
The tables below show the credit guality by class of financinl assets based on the Group's eredit

rating system:
2015
Meither past due nor impaired  Past due or
Standard  individually ——
High grade grade impalred Taotal
{In Thousands)
Loans aind Recelvalles:
Cash amd cash equivalents PI51.035 - P- #151,035
Receivahbes:
Trade debiors 3H14 36,164 95,006 F40,044
Insurance receivables 351,174 = 65,116 416,490
Others 24,605 3,29 192,77 320,608
Amounts owed by
related partics B - 1,625 LeM
Deposits {under "(Hher
noacurrent assets™) 19338 200 o0 19,637
AFS Finamcial Avsotsd
Listed equity securities 549 360 - 535,188 1.354,64
Cuied debt secarities 159134 e 450034
Unguoted deld secarities 16,405 - = 1,405
MNonlisted cquliy securiths J82.509 = = JE2. 309
Financial asscts at FVPL 27,9492 = x 27,992
m,mgm F39,660 BAZS M1 P1,630,936
2014
Meither past doe nar mpaired Pasl due or
Srandard  indivedually
High grade grade Epared Total
(In Thousands)
Lowmns and Rocenablas:
Cosh and cash equivalents P353.677 - B Pi51,677
Receivaliles:
Trade debtors 41,933 9,936 19,298 i41,187
Insurance receivables 315,133 [ R3.380 8,32 6,857
hers 42.12% 3503 210,118 236,760
Armounts owed hy
related purtics 22 = HE L 1,632
Dieposis {under " Other
memeurrent assels”) 7214 W 21313
AFE Financial Assets:
Listed equity securities 1,014, S0 T 294,101 1,390,601
Criovied debe securities 2414653 241,653
Unquested debil securitics 6042 - - 082
Mon listed equaty securiiies 200 6561 0 &6l
P2 424 008 P16, 849 Pod4, 5308 F3.225425
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The tables below show the aging analyses of financial assets per class that the Group held as at
June 30, 2015 and 2014, A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make

payment when contractually due,
2013
Hrither paat Past dua beul oot impaired
doe por  Lesailan 3] to bl &1 e 4k (rver  Taalividually
bmpaired M i dayy Auys B days  impaired Tutal
{In Thuusands)
Lovaws gl Beveirabies.
Cash amil cash
euivalimis FlaL038 - P - - P L EFRIEL
B o L P I
Trade debiors 44078 4, L] 163 3512 RG.57TE (B2
Insurance reces ahiles 351,017 = - - 4R.04% 16, 16& i
thers 7801 = - = LRk 192,58 0
Adnnwnrs sweil by
rilabed parlics L] - - 1,025 163
D prasits funder "(Hhcr
moncurrent aseis") 19538 = - = - o 13637
AFS Fimaupial disen
Listed syuity sccmridins LR T = = = - S35 N G BN
Urmaled de bt secorilies LR E S - - - - 289 0
Unguoded debs
SPOUTFIReS 16 405 = = = ¥ - 16405
Monksted equity
shrmridin T3 g - - - - - 2509
Flnamgiad sael al FYILE AT 53 EY - - = i
FL 1 b3S L 1] Bind Flag FIA08 LI F1536336
=014
Reither s Pagi duie i min ingaired
cuemd  Lessiban 3w fil 1 5 er ladividually
impaired 30 daye dava chiys 0 adys im i ed Total
{10 T hemzamedy
Lerarss ang e o
Cash &8d Cash gqunalenis P11 ATT - [ ] - [ B PISIATT
Reozivihli:
Tradi debloes 43,003 2ABD pLl] - 5060 kLl 141,147
Ir=ammance receivihles 315035 E T = 183,1&0 4341 G ESY
Uhers 43,901 2 = 1,741 Xipaea 155 Tl
Aoty wed by
ekl gentice £l o - - 1.&lm 143k
[epoosies | undier "Cther
Nl asses” | 27214 - - Th 3 27511
RN Finre il dvsers
Lised ecuiy seaurtics 1, 0. 500 - = - kLR 1790 501
Chuied da8 scumlics 21655 - - - - M1 555
Lirdpuoned desl
Eegumities 6,0RZ - 2 = LA} e
Man lsted equily
sl 20061 = = = - AL |
FIALT R4S #2AKD B35 P- 0357 POl A0 ®1 73075

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises when there i 2 shoriage of funds and the Group as a consequence could not

mest its maturing obligations.

In the management of liquidity, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of

fluctuations in cash Mows.
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The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at
June 30, 2015 and 2014 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

2015
O Lns thas 3 te Gin 11
temand 3 manths minths vt ha Toeal
{ln Thousands]
Atcounls payahly anal
. azereed dxpunses B526,333 PS4, 04 Pl T P- BIIR
Rewtal und afher deposiis AR1,67H - = - =
50,788 15, 165 1884 4 X080 R1.373
2014
i Less than I b fidn 12
it 3 muomite s miemils Toual
fIn Thansanmls)
Succnems payahle and sccrued
CRpEmGLS B55R, 104 P34 533 #1519 P57.598 Pani 674
Penl finf olser depasis 31,4H 52747 61.-134- AEIEE 214,143
B Gl HHE 25 BT Rl FIIE__EH!- EETR A7

Foreign Curvency Kisk

The Group's foreign currency risk results from the foreign exchange rate movements of the
Philippine pese against the United States dollars (USD), European Monetary Union {EUR ) and
Great Britan Pound (GBP). The Group's foreign currency risk arises primarily from its cash in
banks and trade payables,

The Group monitors and assesses cash flows from anticipated transactions and financing
agreements denominated in USD, EUR and GBP.

The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk as a1 June 30, 2015 and
2004 Included in the table are the Group's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts:

2015 2014
Foreign Peso Foreign Peso
Currency Equivalent  Currency  Egquivaleni
{In Thousands}
Financial Asset:
Cash in hanks
UsD £22 1,000 $if P78G
Shaort-term investments
LSD as 1,578
Fiancial Linkality:
Arvcounts pavable
UsD 2 80 2 87
EUR 1 50 I il
GBP 1 42 | 75
Net financial assct $53 Pl 415 $14 P36
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As at June 30 2015 and 2014, the exchange rates of other currencies Philippine Peso are as
follows: .

1S 2014
Lsh P45.09 P43.65
EUR S0.50 54.76
GBE 71.13 74.59

The following table presents the impact on the Groups income before income tax due o changes
in the fair value of its financial assets and liabifities, brought about by 4 reasonably possible
change in the foreign currencies'® exchange rate (holding all other variables constant) as af

Jume 30, 2015 and 2014,

Increase! Effect on income
decrease in (lozs) hefore
CUTTENCY rate Income tax
{In Thouzands)
2015
L'SD +0.417%% Fz2.79
-8.65% (36.13)
EUR 41,340 (2.3
-1.30%; 1.2%8
GEP +1L.98%, (1.16)
_114!% “153'
2014
UsD (1G9 {R11.04)
=1, 59%; Q.44
ELIR +1.14% (1.14)
=0, 8204 0,82
GRp 1,700 {1.707}
1734 .73

There is no other impact on the Group's equity other than those already affecting the consolidated
staternents of ingome.

Eguity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fajr vitlues of equities decrease as the result of change in the
levels of equity indices and the valve of individual stock. The equity price risk exposure arises

from the Ciroup's investment in stocks. Equity investment of the Group is categorized as AFS
financial assets,

The Group measures the sensitivity 1o its equity securities by using Philippine Stock Exchange
index Puctuations and its effect to respective share prices.

The Group’s policy is to mainiain the risk to an acceptabie level. Movement of share price is
monitored regularly to determine impact n its financial position,

AT A YD
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The basic sensitivity analysis assumes that the stock™s standard devimiion on its historical vield for
the past one year provides the basis for reasonably possible change in prices of the stock
investment, The Growp establishes the relative range of stock invesinent viclds bascd on
historical standard deviation for one year,

The following table demonstrates the sensilivity 10 reasonable possible chiznge in equity prices,
wilh all other variables beld constant:

Change in
Equirty Effect on
price index Equiry
{In Thousands)
s
Upper Limit +11.59% 34,680
Lower Limit (11.59%) {34,680)
2014
Upoer Limit +17.62% P232.049
Lower Limit (17.62%) (232.049)
2013
Uppar Limii +19.06%% 251,022
Lower Limit { 19.06%) (251.0cx2)

The impact on the Group®s equity already excludes the impact on transactions affecting the
consolidated statemeniz of income.

Imfevest Rate Risk
The Group’s exposure 1o the risk for changes in market interest rate relates to quoted debi
instrument.

The Group regularly monitors the market interest mle movements to assess exposure impact.

The sensitivity 10 a reasonably possible change in the interest rate (in basis points), with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's equity as at June 30, 20015 and 2014 are as follows: |

The impact on the Group's equity is caused by the changes in the market value of quoed drctrl due
to interest rate movements. The quoted debt instruments of the Group pena to HTM
investments which matured in July 2013,

Changes in
imtorest rates
(in basis Sensifivily 1o
points) equity
2013 +15% (F2.372)
{135) 2572
200172 1141 (P1LA71)
{141} 1,871



-Ti-

Capital Manapement

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to optimize the use and carnings
potential of the Group®s resources and considering changes in economic conditions and the risk
characieristics of the Group’s activilies,

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Groop may adjust the
dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders or ssee new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, polickes or processes as ol June 30, 2015 and 2014,

As al June 30, 20035 and 2014, the Group considers the following accounts as capital:

2015 2014

(In Thousands)
Capital stock 1009912 P2.066357
Additional paid-in capital 519904 819904
F1,.599.516 P2.896.261

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requiremens.

3l

Financial Instruments

The following method and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
Tinancial mstruments for which it is practicable to cstimate such values at Jupe 30, 20035 and 2014
arg set nut below;

Cash and Cash Equivalernts _
The carrying amount of cash and cash eguivalents approximates its fair values due 1o the shori-
term matwaky of this finarcial instrument.

Receivables, Accounis Pavable and Avcrued Expenses and Amownts owed by Relgred Parties
The carrying amounts receivables, accounts payvable and accrued expenses and amounts owed by
related parties approximate their fair values due to their short-term rature.

Rental mnd Cther Deporits
Current portion of rental and other deposits the camrving amounts approximates its fair value due
to the shon-term maturity of this financial instrument.

The fair values noncurrent security deposit recorded under “Rental and other deposits”
approximate ite amortized cost which was based on the present vulue of the future cash flows.

AFS Financiol Asseis

AFS equity fimancial assets that are listed are based on their bid prices as at June 30, 2005 and
2014. AFS debt financial assets that arc quoted are based on market prices. Unguoted debt and
nonlisted AFS financial assets are based on latest available rransaction price at the end of the

reporting period.

Fireneciend Assets of FVIFL
Listed equity sccurities designated as financial assets at FVPL are based on their hid prices.
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32 Orther Matiors

Certain accounts in the 2014 financial satements were reclassified 10 conform with the 2015
presentaton.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDU LES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Orion Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
20/F LKG Towes

GRO1 Ayala Ave., Makati City
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We huve audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
<tatements of Prime Orion Philippines, Inc. and its subsidiaries as at June 30, 2013 and 2014 and for

each of the three years in the peried ended June 30, 2013,
wur report thereon dated October @, 2015, Our audits were
~ opinion an the basic financial stetements taken as a whole.
Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Sch

included in this form 17-4, and have 1ssucd
made for the purpos: of farming i

The schedules listed in e [rdex 1o the
edules are the responsibility of the

Company's management These schedules are presented for the purpose of complying with Secarilies

Reguiation Code Rule 08, As Amended {2011} and are no
These schedules has been subjected to the auditing proced

fnancial statements and, 0 our o

t part of the basic Minancial stalements.
ures applied in the audit of the hasic
nion, fairly states, in all material respects, the information required

10 he set forth therein in relation W the basic financial statements taken as 2 whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAY O & CO.

lose Pepito E- Zabat 111

Partner

CPA Certificate No. B350

SEC Accreditation No. 0328-AR-3 (Graup AL
May |, 2015, valid until April 30, 2013

Tax Identification Ne. [G2-100-830

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-60-2013,
February 27, 2015, valid until February 26, 2018

PTR Mo, 4751344, Januery 5, 2015, Makati City

Ocraber 9, 2015
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